
 

  
The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

 

AGENDA  
 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING  
 

REGULAR MEETING 
February 12, 2020 

9:00 a.m. 
 
 

Board Conference Room 
1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 350 

Concord, California 
 

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 
 

1.  Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2.  Recognition of Luz Winkler for 20 years of service. 
 

3.  Accept comments from the public. 
 

4.  Approve minutes from the January 8, 2020 meeting. 
 

5.  Routine items for February 12, 2020. 
 

a. Approve certifications of membership. 
b. Approve service and disability allowances. 
c. Accept disability applications and authorize subpoenas as required. 
d. Approve death benefits. 
e. Accept travel report. 
f. Accept asset allocation report. 
g. Accept liquidity report. 

 
CLOSED SESSION 
 

6.  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS  
(Government Code Section 54957.6)  
 
Agency designated representative:  
Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Unrepresented Employees: All CCCERA unrepresented positions 



   

   

. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

7.  The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957 to 
consider recommendations from the medical advisor and/or staff regarding the 
following disability retirement applications: 

 

Member Type Sought Recommendation 
a.  Monica Kang       Service Connected Service Connected 
b.  Peter Marshall Service Connected Service Connected 
c.  Lance Morrison Service Connected Service Connected 
d.  Cynthia Simonetti Service Connected Service Connected 
e.  Sally Melgoza-Moore Non-Service Connected Non-Service Connected 

 

8.  The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 
54956.9(d)(1) to confer with legal counsel regarding pending litigation: 
 

a. Nowicki v. CCCERA, et al., Contra Costa County Superior Court, Case No. C17-
01266 

 
OPEN SESSION 
 

9.  Presentation from PARS (Public Agency Retirement Services) regarding the I.R.C. 
Section 115 Trust for Other Post-Employment Benefits for CCCERA employees.  
 

10.  Presentation on travel reimbursement and educational tracking process. 

11.  Consider and take possible action to amend the CCCERA Travel Expense 
Reimbursement Policy. 
 

12.  Consider and take possible action to amend the CCCERA Records Retention Policy. 
 

13.  Consider and take possible action to amend the CCCERA Internal Revenue Code 
Compliance Policy. 
 

14.  Consider authorizing the attendance of Board: 
a. Day of Education in Private Equity Conference, NASP, March 26, 2020,        

Los Angeles, CA. 
b. 2020 Public Funds Roundtable, Institutional Investor, April 28 – May 1, 2020, 

Los Angeles, CA.  
 

15.  Miscellaneous 
a. Staff Report     
b. Outside Professionals’ Report  
c. Trustees’ comments 

 



MINUTES 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

January 8, 2020 

9:00 a.m. 

Board Conference Room 

1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 350 

Concord, California 

Present: Candace Andersen, Donald Finley, Scott Gordon, Louie Kroll, Jay Kwon, David 

MacDonald, John Phillips, William Pigeon, Mike Sloan, Todd Smithey and Russell 

Watts 

Absent: Jerry Holcombe 

Staff: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer; Christina Dunn, Deputy Chief Executive Officer; 

Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer; Karen Levy, General Counsel; Wrally 

Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer; Anne Sommers, Administrative/HR Manager; Henry 

Gudino, Accounting Manager; Tim Hoppe, Retirement Services Manager; and Jasmine 

Lee, Member Services Manager 

Outside Professional Support: Representing: 

None 

1. Pledge of Allegiance

The Board, staff and audience joined in the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Recognition of Elise Diliberto for 5 years of service and Ruchele Durbin for 30 years of service

Smithey recognized and congratulated Elise Diliberto for her 5 years of service and Ruchele Durbin

for her 30 years of service.

3. Accept comments from the public

No member of the public offered comment.

4. Approval of minutes

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the December 11, 2019 Board meeting. (Yes: Andersen,

Finley, Gordon, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts).

5. Routine Items

It was M/S/C to approve the routine items of the January 8, 2020 meeting. (Yes:  Andersen, Finley,

Gordon, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts)

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/12/20Agenda Item#4



Page 2 

January 8, 2020 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957. 

 

The Board moved into open session. 

6. It was M/S/C to accept the Medical Advisor’s recommendation and grant the following disability 

benefits: 

a. Jack Sheppard – Service Connected (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Gordon, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, 

Phillips, Smithey and Watts) 

 

7. Consider and take possible action regarding non-service connected disability retirement 

allowance of deceased member Saenyuan Pharn 

Hoppe provided background on the events leading up to the death of Mr. Pharn noting that prior to his 

death, Mr. Pharn had filed a Member Election Form for Non-Service Connected Disability in the 

Event of Death During Active Membership. The medical records were analyzed by the Board’s 

medical advisor, who concluded that the evidence supported that Mr. Pharm was totally disabled from 

any employment prior to his death.  He recommended the Board grant Mr. Pharn a non-service 

connected disability retirement, effective July 13, 2018. 

After a discussion, it was M/S to deny the non-service connected disability retirement.  

Pigeon was present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

After a lengthy discussion, a substitute motion was M/S/C that the member was permanently unable to 

engage in any substantial gainful employment and to grant a non-service connected disability 

retirement, effective July 13, 2018, and grant the member’s beneficiaries benefits pursuant to 

Government Code Section 31764, an Optional Settlement 4 allowance. (Yes: Kroll, MacDonald, 

Pigeon, Smithey and Watts. No: Andersen, Gordon, Kwon and Phillips) 

The Board requested a follow-up workshop on this subject be provided for discussion at a future 

meeting. 

8. Retirement overview session 

Brianne Wilkins, Senior Retirement Counselor, gave a retirement overview presentation being 

provided to members within CCCERA’s retirement system. The topics include key terms used in 

communicating with members, membership requirements, tiers, contributions, final average salary, 

service credits, reciprocity and using the calculator on CCCERA’s website. 

9. Consider and take possible action to approve the assignment of CCCERA’s agreement with 

LRWL Inc. to Segal Consulting 

Strohl reported that CCCERA was notified on December 9, 2019 of Segal Consulting’s intention to 

purchase LRWL Inc. She stated CCCERA has been assured there will be no change to the services 

agreed to in the contract and all LRWL Inc. employees and the team assigned to CCCERA will 

continue to remain the same. 

 

Strohl introduced Chris Fikes from LRWL Inc. who discussed the purchase and transition of LRWL 

Inc. by Segal Consulting. He also gave an update on the progress made since they began work on the 

project and noted they are currently on schedule. 

 



Page 3 

January 8, 2020 

 

 

After a lengthy discussion, it was M/S/C to approve the assignment of CCCERA’s agreement with 

LRWL Inc. to Segal Consulting. (Yes: Andersen, Gordon, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon, 

Smithey and Watts) 

 

10. Consider and take possible action to adopt the CCCERA position pay schedules for 

classifications represented by AFSCME, Local 2700 

Strohl reported the position pay schedules are related to the increases in base pay in the Memorandum 

of Understanding between CCCERA and AFSCME, Local 2700 that was adopted on February 13, 

2019 and covers the period of January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2023. 

 

It was M/S/C to adopt the CCCERA position pay schedules for classifications represented by 

AFSCME, Local 2700. (Yes: Andersen, Gordon, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey 

and Watts) 

 

11. Consider and take possible action to authorize the members of the Audit Committee to 

participate in the interview of the final candidate(s) for the newly created position of internal 

auditor 

Strohl reported the Audit Committee Charter does not currently include a provision for the Committee 

to participate in interviews and will be amending the Charter in the future. 

It was M/S/C to authorize the members of the Audit Committee to participate in the interview of the 

final candidate(s) for the newly created position of internal auditor. (Yes: Andersen, Gordon, Kroll, 

Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey and Watts) 

12. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board: 

a. There was no action taken on this item. 2020 Risk & Liquidity Forum, Institutional Investor 

Forums, January 28-29, 2020, San Francisco, CA. 

 

13. Miscellaneous 

(a) Staff Report – 

 

Strohl reported January 1st was the 5-year anniversary of CCCERA becoming an independent 

employer. 

 

(b) Outside Professionals’ Report -    

 

None 

 

(c) Trustees’ comments – 

 

Phillips reported on the key takeaways from the Markets Group 7th Annual California 

Institutional Forum that he and Smithey attended.  

 

It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting.  (Yes: Andersen, Gordon, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, 

Pigeon, Smithey and Watts) 

 

 

 

             

Todd Smithey, Chairman    David MacDonald, Secretary 



sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/12/20Agenda Item#5





sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/12/20Agenda Item#5







CCCERA Board of Trustees 

Training & Educational Conference Expenses Paid During

Quarter 4 2019 (October- December)

Trustee: Conference Name/Purpose: Location: Dates: Total

Candace Andersen NONE

Donald Finley SACRS Fall 2019 Conference Monterey, CA Nov 12-15, 2019 576.88   

Scott Gordon Torchlight 2019 Annual Investment Summit New York, NY Nov 6-7, 2019 1,708.05  

Jerry Holcombe NONE

Louie Kroll SACRS Fall 2019 Conference Monterey, CA Nov 12-15, 2019 1,010.67  

Jay Kwon CALAPRS Trustees' Roundtable Oakland, CA Oct 25, 2019 167.02  

David J. MacDonald 17th Annual Global ARC Conference Boston, MA Oct 28-30, 2019 2,113.81  

SACRS Fall 2019 Conference Monterey, CA Nov 12-15, 2019 970.73  

NCPERS 2020 Legislative Conference-PREPAID REG Washington, DC Jan 26-28, 2020 565.00  

John Phillips IFEBP (TMP) Trustees Master Program San Diego, CA Oct 19-20, 2019 882.16  

SACRS Fall 2019 Conference Monterey, CA Nov 12-15, 2019 1,034.66  

Markets Group 7th Annual CA Institutional Forum Santa Rosa, CA Dec 4, 2019 563.78  

William Pigeon NONE

Mike Sloan SACRS Fall 2019 Conference Monterey, CA Nov 12-15, 2019 957.81  

Todd Smithey SACRS Fall 2019 Conference Monterey, CA Nov 12-15, 2019 781.92  

Markets Group 7th Annual CA Institutional Forum Santa Rosa, CA Dec 4, 2019 326.77  

Russell V. Watts SACRS Fall 2019 Conference Monterey, CA Nov 12-15, 2019 731.63  

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/12/20Agenda Item#5



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association

Asset Allocation as of December 31, 2019

Market Percentage Current Target Current Target Long Term Long Term
Liquidity Value of Total Fund Percentage Over/(Under) Target Over/(Under)

Insight CCC 956,150,002 10.2% 12.0% -1.8%
Sit CCC 539,042,631 5.8% 6.0% -0.2%
Dimensional Fund Advisors CCC 460,934,054 4.9% 6.0% -1.1%

Total Liquidity 1,956,126,688           20.9% 24.0% -3.1% 24.0% -3.1%

Growth
Domestic Equity
Boston Partners CCC 251,080,501 2.7% 2.5% 0.2%
Jackson Square CCC 244,269,952 2.6% 2.5% 0.1%
BlackRock Index Fund CCC 204,604,006 2.2% 2.0% 0.2%
Emerald Advisors CCC 159,009,461 1.7% 1.5% 0.2%
Ceredex CCC 160,524,993 1.7% 1.5% 0.2%
Total Domestic Equity 1,019,488,911 10.9% 10.0% 0.9% 5.0% 5.9%

Global & International Equity
Pyrford (BMO) CCC 485,671,948 5.2% 5.0% 0.2%
William Blair CCC 500,334,604 5.3% 5.0% 0.3%
First Eagle CCC 390,136,719 4.2% 4.0% 0.2%
Artisan Global Opportunities CCC 404,024,936 4.3% 4.0% 0.3%
PIMCO/RAE Emerging Markets CCC 369,299,185 3.9% 4.0% -0.1%
TT Emerging Markets CCC 360,880,373 3.9% 4.0% -0.1%
Total Global & International Equity 2,510,347,766 26.8% 26.0% 0.8% 24.0% 2.8%

Private Equity 1,024,924,786 10.9% 11.0% -0.1% 11.0% -0.1%
Private Credit 539,105,455 5.8% 5.0% 0.8% 12.0% -6.2%
Real Estate - Value Add 163,789,623 1.7% 4.0% -2.3% 4.0% -2.3%
Real Estate - Opportunistic & Distresse 466,532,141 5.0% 4.0% 1.0% 4.0% 1.0%
Real Estate - REIT (Adelante) CCC 80,205,371 0.9% 1.0% -0.1% 1.0% -0.1%
High Yield (Allianz) CCC 208,839,867 2.2% 2.0% 0.2% 0.0% 2.2%
Risk Parity 5.0% -0.1% 5.0% -0.1%
AQR GRP EL CCC 236,618,370 2.5%
PanAgora CCC 223,192,334 2.4%
Total Other Growth Assets 2,943,207,947 31.4% 32.0% -0.6% 37.0% -5.6%

Total Growth Assets 6,473,044,624 69.1% 68.0% 1.1% 66.0% 3.1%

Risk Diversifying 
AFL-CIO CCC 334,559,218 3.6% 3.5% 0.1% 3.0% 0.6%
Parametric Defensive Equity CCC 204,710,656 2.2% 2.5% -0.3% 3.5% -1.3%
Wellington Real Total Return CCC 190,367,799 2.0% 2.0% 0.0% 3.5% -1.5%

Total Risk Diversifying 729,637,673 7.8% 8.0% -0.2% 10.0% -2.2%

Cash and Overlay
Overlay (Parametric) CCC 39,093,253 0.4% 0.4%
Cash CCC 168,995,241 1.8% 1.8%

Total Cash and Overlay 208,088,494 2.2% 0.0% 2.2% 0.0% 2.2%

Total Fund 9,366,897,478.77      100% 100% 0% 100% 0%

*Current targets and ranges reflect asset allocation targets accepted by the Board on June 26, 2019 (BOR Resolution 2019-4)

0% - 10%

Range
16% - 28%

Range
60% - 80%

Range

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/12/20Agenda Item#5



P
ri
va
te

 M
ar
ke

t 
In
ve

st
m
e
n
ts

A
s 
o
f 
D
e
ce
m
b
e
r 
3
1
, 2

0
1
9

   
 

 
 

 

R
EA

L 
ES
TA

TE
 ‐
 V
al
u
e
 A
d
d

In
ce
p
ti
o
n

Ta
rg
e
t

# 
o
f

D
is
cr
e
ti
o
n

N
e
w
 T
ar
ge

t
Fu

n
d
in
g

M
ar
ke

t
%
 o
f

O
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g

D
at
e

Te
rm

in
at
io
n

Ex
te
n
si
o
n

b
y 
G
P
/L
P

Te
rm

in
at
io
n

C
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t

V
al
u
e

To
ta
l A

ss
e
t

C
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t

In
ve
sc
o
 IR

EF
 II

0
5
/3
0
/0
7

1
2
/3
1
/1
5

in
 f
u
ll 
liq

.
8
5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

1
0
.0
0
%

In
ve
sc
o
 IR

EF
 II
I

0
8
/0
1
/1
3

0
8
/0
1
/2
0

3
5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

1
,4
2
7
,8
1
5

0
.0
2
%

In
ve
sc
o
 IR

EF
 IV

1
2
/0
1
/1
4

1
2
/0
1
/2
1

3
5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

1
6
,1
4
4
,8
8
9

0
.1
7
%

5
,1
9
1
,2
6
1
 

In
ve
sc
o
 IR

EF
 V

0
9
/1
1
/1
8

0
9
/1
1
/2
5

7
5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
3
,0
9
1
,3
0
7

0
.2
5
%

5
2
,4
8
2
,9
5
5
 

Lo
n
g 
W
h
ar
f 
FR

EG
 IV

0
8
/1
4
/1
3

0
9
/3
0
/2
1

2
5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

6
,3
1
7
,3
6
7

0
.0
7
%

Lo
n
g 
W
h
ar
f 
FR

EG
 V

1
0
/3
1
/1
6

0
9
/3
0
/2
4

5
0
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

4
0
,9
8
8
,5
7
7

0
.4
4
%

La
Sa
lle
 In

co
m
e 
&
 G
ro
w
th
 F
u
n
d
 V
I

0
1
/3
1
/1
2

0
1
/3
1
/1
9

7
5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
5
,3
0
5
,9
9
2

0
.2
7
%

3
,9
4
6
,0
0
0
 

La
Sa
lle
 In

co
m
e 
&
 G
ro
w
th
 F
u
n
d
 V
II

1
0
/3
1
/1
6

0
9
/3
0
/2
4

7
5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

5
0
,5
1
3
,6
7
5

0
.5
4
%

1
8
,3
4
0
,4
3
1
 

5
8
0
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

1
6
3
,7
8
9
,6
2
3

1
.7
5
%

7
9
,9
6
0
,6
4
7
 

O
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g 
C
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
ts

7
9
,9
6
0
,6
4
7
 

To
ta
l

2
4
3
,7
5
0
,2
7
0

R
EA

L 
ES
TA

TE
 ‐
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
is
ti
c 
&
 D
is
tr
e
ss
e
d

In
ce
p
ti
o
n

Ta
rg
e
t

# 
o
f

D
is
cr
e
ti
o
n

N
e
w
 T
ar
ge

t
Fu

n
d
in
g

M
ar
ke

t
%
 o
f

O
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g

D
at
e

Te
rm

in
at
io
n

Ex
te
n
si
o
n

b
y 
G
P
/L
P

Te
rm

in
at
io
n

C
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t

V
al
u
e

To
ta
l A

ss
e
t

C
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t

D
LJ
 R
ea

l E
st
at
e 
C
ap

it
al
 P
ar
tn
er
s,
 L
.P
. I
II

0
6
/3
0
/0
5

0
6
/3
0
/1
4

in
 f
u
ll 
liq

.
7
5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
1
,0
6
9
,1
3
8

0
.2
2
%

4
,0
3
1
,3
3
8
 

D
LJ
 R
ea

l E
st
at
e 
C
ap

it
al
 P
ar
tn
er
s,
 L
.P
. I
V

1
2
/3
1
/0
7

0
9
/3
0
/1
8

1
0
0
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

7
8
,5
8
9
,3
2
6

0
.8
4
%

3
,1
6
2
,6
1
0
 

D
LJ
 R
ea

l E
st
at
e 
C
ap

it
al
 P
ar
tn
er
s,
 L
.P
. V

0
7
/3
1
/1
3

1
2
/3
1
/2
2

7
5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

4
5
,0
0
2
,3
7
5

0
.4
8
%

2
0
,5
5
6
,7
5
3
 

D
LJ
 R
ea

l E
st
at
e 
C
ap

it
al
 P
ar
tn
er
s,
 L
.P
. V

I
0
2
/2
8
/1
9

0
1
/3
1
/2
9

5
0
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
3
,5
2
7
,7
3
3

0
.2
5
%

2
5
,0
5
0
,4
6
2
 

O
ak
tr
ee

 R
ea

l E
st
at
e 
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
Fu

n
d
 V

0
2
/0
1
/1
1

0
2
/0
1
/2
1

5
0
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

4
,3
2
0
,5
5
3

0
.0
5
%

2
5
,7
5
0
,0
0
0
 

O
ak
tr
ee

 R
ea

l E
st
at
e 
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
Fu

n
d
 V
I

0
9
/3
0
/1
3

0
9
/3
0
/2
0

8
0
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
,2
6
8
,5
0
5

0
.3
1
%

1
8
,4
0
0
,0
0
0
 

O
ak
tr
ee

 R
ea

l E
st
at
e 
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
Fu

n
d
 V
II

0
2
/2
8
/1
5

0
2
/2
8
/2
3

6
5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

5
3
,1
8
9
,1
6
3

0
.5
7
%

1
8
,7
2
0
,0
0
0
 

Si
gu

le
r 
G
u
ff
 D
is
tr
es
se
d
 R
ea

l E
st
at
e 
O
p
p
. F
u
n
d

0
7
/3
0
/1
1

0
7
/3
0
/2
2

7
5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

3
3
,5
0
2
,2
3
6

0
.3
6
%

5
,6
2
5
,0
0
0
 

Si
gu

le
r 
G
u
ff
 D
is
tr
es
se
d
 R
ea

l E
st
at
e 
O
p
p
. F
u
n
d
 II

0
8
/3
1
/1
3

0
8
/3
1
/2
5

7
0
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

4
8
,6
5
5
,2
0
6

0
.5
2
%

8
,0
1
5
,0
0
0
 

Si
gu

le
r 
G
u
ff
 D
is
tr
es
se
d
 R
ea

l E
st
at
e 
O
p
p
. I
I C

o
‐I
n
v

0
1
/3
1
/1
6

1
0
/3
1
/2
5

2
5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

1
8
,8
2
4
,2
1
4

0
.2
0
%

4
,4
6
2
,1
3
8
 

P
au

ls
o
n
 R
ea

l E
st
at
e 
Fu

n
d
 II

1
1
/1
0
/1
3

1
1
/1
0
/2
0

2
0
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
4
,4
6
5
,0
8
8

0
.2
6
%

6
5
4
,3
7
7
 

A
n
ge
lo
 G
o
rd
o
n
 R
ea

lt
y 
Fu

n
d
 V
II
I

1
2
/3
1
/1
1

1
2
/3
1
/1
8

8
0
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
2
,1
9
2
,5
5
4

0
.2
4
%

1
2
,3
3
4
,3
0
2
 

A
n
ge
lo
 G
o
rd
o
n
 R
ea

lt
y 
Fu

n
d
 IX

1
0
/1
0
/1
4

1
0
/1
0
/2
2

6
5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

6
3
,9
2
6
,0
5
0

0
.6
8
%

1
2
,1
2
2
,5
0
0
 

8
3
0
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

4
6
6
,5
3
2
,1
4
1

4
.9
8
%

1
5
8
,8
8
4
,4
8
0
 

O
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g 
C
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
ts

1
5
8
,8
8
4
,4
8
0
 

To
ta
l

6
2
5
,4
1
6
,6
2
1

P
R
IV
A
TE

 C
R
ED

IT
In
ce
p
ti
o
n

Ta
rg
e
t

# 
o
f

D
is
cr
e
ti
o
n

N
e
w
 T
ar
ge

t
Fu

n
d
in
g

M
ar
ke

t
%
 o
f

O
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g

D
at
e

Te
rm

in
at
io
n

Ex
te
n
si
o
n

b
y 
G
P
/L
P

Te
rm

in
at
io
n

C
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t

V
al
u
e

To
ta
l A

ss
e
t

C
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t

To
rc
h
lig
h
t 
D
eb

t 
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y 
Fu

n
d
 II
I

0
9
/3
0
/0
8

0
6
/3
0
/1
6

2
n
d
 1
 Y
R

LP
0
6
/3
0
/1
8

7
5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

0
0
.0
0
%

0

To
rc
h
lig
h
t 
D
eb

t 
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y 
Fu

n
d
 IV

0
8
/0
1
/1
2

0
8
/3
0
/2
0

6
0
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

1
0
,2
3
0
,7
0
4

0
.1
1
%

0

To
rc
h
lig
h
t 
D
eb

t 
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y 
Fu

n
d
 V

1
2
/3
1
/1
4

0
9
/1
7
/2
2

7
5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
5
,2
2
6
,8
0
6

0
.2
7
%

1
5
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

A
n
ge
lo
 G
o
rd
o
n
 E
n
er
gy
 C
re
d
it
 O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s

0
9
/1
0
/1
5

0
9
/1
0
/2
0

1
6
,5
0
0
,0
0
0

4
,3
1
0
,9
4
9

0
.0
5
%

2
,3
1
9
,7
8
3

C
C
C
ER

A
 S
te
p
St
o
n
e

1
2
/0
1
/1
7

1
1
/3
0
/2
7

9
2
0
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

4
9
9
,3
3
6
,9
9
6

5
.3
3
%

4
5
5
,2
5
6
,4
3
9
 

1
,2
7
4
,5
0
0
,0
0
0

5
3
9
,1
0
5
,4
5
5

5
.7
6
%

4
7
2
,5
7
6
,2
2
2

 
O
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g 
C
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
ts

4
7
2
,5
7
6
,2
2
2

To
ta
l

1
,0
1
1
,6
8
1
,6
7
7



P
ri
va
te

 M
ar
ke

t 
In
ve

st
m
e
n
ts

A
s 
o
f 
D
e
ce
m
b
e
r 
3
1
, 2

0
1
9

P
R
IV
A
TE

 E
Q
U
IT
Y

In
ce
p
ti
o
n

Ta
rg
e
t

# 
o
f

D
is
cr
e
ti
o
n

N
e
w
 T
ar
ge

t
Fu

n
d
in
g

M
ar
ke

t
%
 o
f

O
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g

D
at
e

Te
rm

in
at
io
n

Ex
te
n
si
o
n

b
y 
G
P
/L
P

Te
rm

in
at
io
n

C
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t

V
al
u
e

To
ta
l A

ss
e
t

C
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t

A
d
am

s 
St
re
et
 P
ar
tn
er
s

1
2
/2
2
/9
5

1
2
/2
2
/2
5

2
4
4
,3
1
0
,5
3
4

1
4
5
,9
4
3
,2
5
3

1
.5
6%

2
5
,2
5
5
,0
8
0
 

A
d
am

s 
St
re
et
 S
ec
o
n
d
ar
y 
II

1
2
/3
1
/0
8

1
2
/3
1
/2
0

2
8
,3
6
5
,0
0
0

6
,8
0
3
,5
3
3

0
.0
7
%

1
,6
3
5
,0
0
0
 

A
d
am

s 
St
re
et
 S
ec
o
n
d
ar
y 
V

1
0
/3
1
/1
2

1
0
/3
1
/2
2

3
0
,6
1
1
,9
0
0

   
   
   
   
 

2
0
,3
5
7
,1
8
0

0
.2
2
%

9
,3
8
8
,1
0
0
 

A
d
am

s 
St
re
et
 V
en

tu
re
 In

n
o
va
ti
o
n
 F
u
n
d

0
3
/0
9
/1
6

0
3
/0
9
/2
8

4
5
,4
1
2
,5
0
0

5
4
,1
1
3
,4
9
4

0
.5
8
%

2
9
,5
8
7
,5
0
0
 

A
E 
In
d
u
st
ri
al
 P
ar
tn
er
s 
Fu

n
d
 II

0
5
/1
8
/1
8

0
5
/1
8
/2
8

5
,1
0
3
,6
8
4

4
,6
3
5
,1
5
6

0
.0
5
%

2
9
,8
9
6
,3
1
6
 

B
ay
 A
re
a 
Eq

u
it
y 
Fu

n
d

0
6
/1
4
/0
4

1
2
/3
1
/1
4

2
n
d
 2
 Y
R

LP
1
2
/3
1
/2
0
1
7

1
0
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

2
,4
0
5
,5
4
8

0
.0
3
%

0

B
ay
 A
re
a 
Eq

u
it
y 
Fu

n
d
 II

2
/2
9
/0
9

1
2
/3
1
/1
9

1
0
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

1
2
,0
2
9
,1
6
3

0
.1
3
%

0

C
ar
p
en

te
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
B
an

cF
u
n
d

1
0
/3
1
/0
9

1
0
/3
1
/1
9

2
9
,3
1
4
,6
5
7

0
0
.0
0
%

0

EI
F 
U
SP
F 
II

0
6
/1
5
/0
5

0
6
/1
5
/1
5

3
rd
 1
 Y
R

LP
0
6
/1
5
/1
8

6
5
,0
2
9
,5
5
6

6
,6
6
5
,5
9
5

0
.0
7
%

0

EI
F 
U
SP
F 
II
I

0
2
/2
8
/0
7

0
2
/2
8
/1
7

1
st
 1
 Y
R

LP
0
2
/2
8
/1
8

7
1
,4
0
9
,0
9
7

1
6
,6
4
6
,6
0
3

0
.1
8
%

0

EI
F 
U
SP
F 
IV

0
6
/2
8
/1
0

0
6
/2
8
/2
0

6
3
,7
4
6
,2
8
8

4
3
,4
9
7
,2
9
9

0
.4
6
%

4

A
re
s 
EI
F 
V

0
9
/0
9
/1
5

1
1
/1
9
/2
5

4
7
,4
3
4
,1
1
1

4
2
,9
5
0
,2
4
7

0
.4
6
%

9
,5
6
6
,3
2
8
 

G
en

st
ar
 C
ap

it
al
 P
ar
tn
er
s 
IX
, L
.P
.

0
2
/2
1
/1
9

1
1
,5
8
8
,3
0
2

1
1
,3
5
5
,5
3
9

3
8
,4
1
1
,6
9
8
 

O
ak
tr
ee

 P
ri
va
te
 In

ve
st
m
en

t 
Fu

n
d
 2
0
0
9

0
2
/2
8
/1
0

1
2
/1
5
/1
9

3
4
,8
1
6
,7
2
9

2
,0
0
3
,2
6
6

0
.0
2
%

6
,3
0
8
,9
6
1

O
ce
an

 A
ve
n
u
e 
Fu

n
d
 II

0
5
/0
7
/1
4

0
5
/0
7
/2
4

2
6
,1
0
0
,0
0
0

2
9
,6
8
1
,3
4
2

0
.3
2
%

3
,9
0
0
,0
0
0

O
ce
an

 A
ve
n
u
e 
Fu

n
d
 II
I

1
2
/0
9
/1
5

1
2
/0
9
/2
5

4
3
,5
0
0
,0
0
0

5
4
,3
3
9
,1
8
3

0
.5
8
%

6
,5
0
0
,0
0
0

P
al
ad

in
 II
I

0
8
/1
5
/0
8

0
8
/1
5
/1
8

3
3
,7
6
7
,8
5
3

3
2
,7
0
2
,6
0
0

0
.3
5
%

2
5
6
,9
8
3

P
at
h
w
ay

1
1
/0
9
/9
8

0
5
/3
1
/2
1

1
2
4
,8
7
2
,9
8
5

1
5
,3
6
8
,0
7
9

0
.1
6
%

1
0
,9
2
1
,4
3
5
 

N
o
ga
le
s 
In
ve
st
m
en

t
0
2
/1
5
/0
4

0
2
/1
5
/1
4

so
ld
 la
st
 in

v.
1
8
,0
2
6
,4
0
8

0
‐

   
   
   
   
   
   
 

0

P
at
h
w
ay
 2
0
0
8

1
2
/2
6
/0
8

1
2
/2
6
/2
3

2
9
,1
7
6
,1
6
1

1
8
,8
4
9
,3
0
3

0
.2
0
%

3
,2
3
2
,4
9
0
 

P
at
h
w
ay
 6

0
5
/2
4
/1
1

0
5
/2
4
/2
6

3
7
,9
4
9
,9
2
5

3
5
,7
5
0
,9
2
7

0
.3
8
%

4
,2
8
7
,7
6
0
 

P
at
h
w
ay
 7

0
2
/0
7
/1
3

0
2
/0
7
/2
3

6
4
,2
5
9
,5
3
7

6
8
,1
5
7
,7
7
7

0
.7
3
%

8
,7
6
9
,9
6
2
 

P
at
h
w
ay
 8

1
1
/2
3
/1
5

1
1
/2
3
/2
5

3
6
,8
7
8
,8
4
6

4
5
,1
8
6
,1
8
7

0
.4
8
%

1
5
,1
8
1
,3
0
3
 

Si
gu

le
r 
G
u
ff
 C
C
C
ER

A
 O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s

0
6
/0
3
/1
4

0
5
/3
1
/2
5

1
4
7
,3
5
5
,7
4
1

1
6
8
,0
2
2
,3
4
7

1
.7
9
%

6
0
,2
2
4
,7
7
2
 

Si
gu

le
r 
G
u
ff
 S
ec
o
n
d
ar
y 
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s

1
2
/3
1
/1
6

1
2
/3
1
/2
6

2
9
,9
9
9
,8
0
2

1
6
9
,0
3
4

0
.0
0
%

4
6
,3
9
4
,8
1
3
 

Si
ri
s 
P
ar
tn
er
s 
IV

0
5
/1
8
/1
8

0
5
/1
8
/2
8

1
6
,2
0
4
,4
8
5

1
6
,1
2
6
,8
8
6

0
.1
7
%

1
8
,7
9
5
,5
1
5
 

TP
G
 H
ea

lt
h
ca
re
 P
ar
tn
er
s,
 L
.P
.

0
6
/2
8
/1
9

6
1
7
,6
8
6

0
2
3
,3
8
2
,3
1
4
 

Tr
id
en

t 
V
II
I,
 L
.P
.

0
5
/2
4
/1
9

0
0

4
0
,0
0
0
,0
0
0
 

R
e
al
 A
ss
e
ts

A
et
h
er
 II
I &

 II
I S
u
rp
lu
s

1
1
/3
0
/1
3

1
1
/3
0
/2
0

7
2
,8
7
9
,8
8
7

7
1
,0
6
3
,7
0
5

0
.7
6
%

7
,2
2
4
,0
9
2

   
   
   
   
   
 

A
et
h
er
 IV

0
1
/0
1
/1
6

0
1
/0
1
/2
8

3
6
,9
5
5
,3
2
5

3
9
,0
1
0
,9
1
9

0
.4
2
%

1
5
,1
8
7
,3
8
9

   
   
   
   
  

C
o
m
m
o
n
fu
n
d
 C
ap

it
al
 N
at
u
ra
l R

es
o
u
rc
es
 IX

0
6
/3
0
/1
3

0
6
/3
0
/2
0

4
3
,3
2
4
,9
9
5

4
1
,6
1
2
,0
3
2

0
.4
4
%

6
,6
7
5
,0
0
5

   
   
   
   
   
 

W
as
te
w
at
er
 O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y 
Fu

n
d

1
2
/3
1
/1
5

1
1
/3
0
/2
2

2
2
,2
8
8
,9
2
4

1
9
,4
7
8
,5
9
0

0
.2
1
%

2
,7
3
3
,3
0
2

   
   
   
   
   
 

1
,5
2
0
,2
6
1
,1
9
7

1
,0
2
4
,9
2
4
,7
8
6

1
2
.3
8
%

4
2
3
,7
1
6
,1
2
3

O
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g 
C
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
ts

4
2
3
,7
1
6
,1
2
3

To
ta
l

1
,4
4
8
,6
4
0
,9
1
0

M
ar
ke
t 
va
lu
e 
eq

u
al
s 
th
e 
m
o
st
 r
ec
en

t 
re
p
o
rt
ed

 n
et
 a
ss
et
 v
al
u
e,
 p
lu
s 
ca
p
it
al
 c
al
ls
 a
ft
er
 n
et
 a
ss
et
 v
al
u
e 
d
at
e,
 le
ss
 d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s 
af
te
r 
n
et
 a
ss
et
 v
al
u
e 
d
at
e.

Th
e 
Ta
rg
et
 T
er
m
in
at
io
n
 c
o
lu
m
n
 is
 t
h
e 
b
eg
in
n
in
g 
o
f 
liq

u
id
at
io
n
 o
f 
th
e 
fu
n
d
, h

o
w
ev
er
, s
o
m
e 
fu
n
d
s 
m
ay
 b
e 
ex
te
n
d
ed

 f
o
r 
an

 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 t
w
o
 o
r 
th
re
e 
ye
ar
s.

 

 



 
 

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association 

Liquidity Report – December 2019 

 

December 2019 Performance 

 Cash Flow Coverage Ratio 

Benefit Cash Flow Projected by Model $43,000,000  

Liquidity Sub-Portfolio Cash Flow $43,000,000 100% 

Actual Benefits Paid $40,876,752 105% 

Next Month’s Projected Benefit Payment $42,500,000  

 

Monthly Manager Positioning – December 2019 

  

 Beginning  
Market Value  

Liquidity 
Program 

Cash Flow 

Market Value 
Change/Other 

Activity 

Ending 
Market Value 

Sit $539,922,001  ($1,250,000) $370,630  $539,042,631  

DFA $474,701,746  ($15,000,000) $1,232,308  $460,934,054  

Insight $980,197,021  ($26,750,000) $2,702,981  $956,150,002  

Liquidity $1,994,820,769  ($43,000,000) $4,305,919  $1,956,126,688  

Cash $146,283,055  $2,123,248  $20,588,938  $168,995,241  

Liquidity + Cash $2,141,103,823  ($40,876,752) $24,894,857  $2,125,121,929  

 

Functional Roles 

Manager Portfolio Characteristics Liquidity Contribution 
Sit High quality portfolio of small balance, 

government guaranteed mortgages 
with higher yields. 

Pays out net income on monthly basis.   

DFA High quality, short duration portfolio of 
liquid, low volatility characteristics. 

Pays out a pre-determined monthly amount.  DFA 
sources liquidity from across their portfolio. 

Insight Buy and maintain (limited trading) 
portfolio of high quality, short duration, 
primarily corporates. 

Completion portfolio makes a payment through net 
income and bond maturities that bridges the gap 
between other managers and projected payment. 

Cash STIF account at custodial bank. Buffer in the event of any Liquidity shortfall/excess. 

 
Notes 
The twelfth cash flow for 2019 from the liquidity program was completed on December 23rd.  The actuarial model 
cash flow was slightly higher than actual experience, producing $2,123 thousand more than the actual benefits paid.  

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/12/20Agenda Item#5



 
 

2 
 

 

Cash Flow Structure 

The chart below shows the sources of cash flow for the next several years of CCCERA’s projected benefit payments.  

This table will change slightly as the model is tweaked and as the portfolios receive new rounds of funding each 

August as part of the Annual Funding Plan. 

 

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

30,000,000

35,000,000

40,000,000

45,000,000

50,000,000

Dollar Investment by Cashflow Period - Current & Future Investments

Sit Contribution DFA Contribution
PV of Principal Maturities PV of Coupon Payments
Growth of Current Insight Investments  Investment Growth (to be sourced)
Future Contributions and Investment Growth



1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520     Phone: (925) 521-3960      Fax: (925) 521-3969     cccera.org 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: February 12, 2020 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer 

Subject: Presentation from PARS (Public Agency Retirement Services) regarding the I.R.C. 
Section 115 Trust for Other Post-Employment Benefits for CCCERA employees. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 
At the November 28, 2018 Board of Retirement (BOR) Meeting, the Board authorized the CEO 
to execute a contract with PARS (Public Agency Retirement Services) for Other Post-
Employment Benefit (“OPEB”) Trust Fund Management Services and adopted BOR Resolution 
2018-4 approving the adoption of the PARS Public Agencies Post-Employment Benefits Trust 
(Trust).   

On January 23, 2019 the Board of Retirement adopted BOR Resolution 2019-1, Funding of I.R.C. 
Section 115 Trust for Other Post-Employment Benefits.  This Resolution was later amended and 
superseded by BOR Resolution 2019-5 at the July 24, 2019 meeting, in order to annually fund 
the ADC on an amortization schedule designed to achieve full funding over a 10 year period 
(instead of a 30 year period). 

On an annual basis, PARS will provide a report to the Board regarding the performance of the 
Trust, net of trustee administration and investment management fees, and showing the 
CCCERA account balance. The December 31, 2019 account balance shown in the PARS report 
does not include 2019 costs for retiree health benefit payments and actuarial services of 
approximately $63K that will be accrued for and shown in the 2019 CAFR prepared by CCCERA. 
This is the first annual presentation for the Board.

Recommendation 
Informational only.  No action is necessary. 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/12/20Agenda Item#9



Co
nt

ra
 c

os
ta

 c
ou

nt
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 r

et
ir

em
en

t 
as

so
ci

at
io

n 
 ▎

1

Co
nt

ra
 c

os
ta

 c
ou

nt
y

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 r

et
ir

em
en

t 
as

so
ci

at
io

n
O

P
E

B
 P

re
-F

u
n

d
in

g
 T

ru
s
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 C

li
e

n
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 1
2

, 
2

0
2

0



Co
nt

ra
 c

os
ta

 c
ou

nt
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 r

et
ir

em
en

t 
as

so
ci

at
io

n 
 ▎

2

Co
nt

ac
ts

Je
n

n
if

e
r 

M
e

za

M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
in

g

(8
0

0
) 

5
4

0
-6

3
6

9
 x

1
4

1

jm
e

za
@

p
a

rs
.o

rg

N
ik

 W
e

ig
a

n
d

S
e

n
io

r 
C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

r,
 C

li
e

n
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

(8
0

0
) 

5
4

0
-6

3
6

9
 x

1
5

0

n
w

e
ig

a
n

d
@

p
a

rs
.o

rg

A
n

d
re

w
 B

ro
w

n
, 

C
F

A

D
ir

e
c

to
r,

 S
e

n
io

r 
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

(4
1

5
) 

7
0

5
-7

6
0

5

a
n

d
re

w
.b

ro
w

n
@

h
ig

h
m

a
rk

ca
p

it
a

l.
co

m



Co
nt

ra
 c

os
ta

 c
ou

nt
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 r

et
ir

em
en

t 
as

so
ci

at
io

n 
 ▎

3

Pa
rs

 T
ru

st
 T

ea
m T

ru
st

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
to

r 
&

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

n
t

36
Y

e
a

rs
 o

f 
E

x
p

e
ri

e
n

ce
(1

9
8

4
-2

0
2

0
)

1,4
00

+
P

la
n

s 
u

n
d

e
r 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

90
0+

P
u

b
li
c 

A
g

e
n

cy
C

li
e

n
ts

$4
.1

B
A

ss
e

ts
 u

n
d

e
r 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

50
0K

+
P

la
n

 P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
ts

•
R

e
co

rd
k

e
e

p
in

g

•
S

u
b

-t
ru

st
 a

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g

•
M

o
n

it
o

rs
 p

la
n

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

ce

•
P

ro
ce

ss
e

s 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s/

d
is

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
ts

•
H

a
n

d
s-

o
n

, d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

e
a

m
s

•
C

o
o

rd
in

a
te

s 
a

ll
 a

g
e

n
cy

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

In
v

e
st

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

•
In

ve
st

m
e

n
t 

su
b

-a
d

vi
so

r 
to

 t
ru

st
e

e
 U

.S
. 
B

a
n

k

•
In

ve
st

m
e

n
t 

p
o

lic
y
 a

ss
is

ta
n

ce

•
U

se
s 

o
p

e
n

 a
rc

h
it

e
ct

u
re

•
A

ct
iv

e
 a

n
d

 p
a

ss
iv

e
 p

la
tf

o
rm

 o
p

ti
o

n
s

•
C

u
st

o
m

iz
e

d
 p

o
rt

fo
li
o

s 
(w

it
h

 m
in

im
u

m
 a

ss
e

t 
le

ve
l)

10
1

Y
e

a
rs

 o
f 

E
x

p
e

ri
e

n
ce

(1
9

1
9

-2
0

2
0

)

$1
6.

4B
A

ss
e

ts
 u

n
d

e
r 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

T
ru

st
e

e

•
5

th
 l
a

rg
e

st
 c

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l b
a

n
k

 a
n

d
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 

n
a

ti
o

n
’s

 la
rg

e
st

 t
ru

st
e

e
s 

fo
r 

S
e

ct
io

n
 1

1
5

 t
ru

st
s.

•
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 p
la

n
 a

ss
e

ts
, 

•
O

ve
rs

ig
h

t 
p

ro
te

ct
io

n
 a

s 
p

la
n

 f
id

u
ci

a
ry

•
C

u
st

o
d

ia
n

 o
f 

a
ss

e
ts

 

15
7

Y
e

a
rs

 o
f 

E
x

p
e

ri
e

n
ce

(1
8

6
3

-2
0

2
0

)

$5
.0

T
A

ss
e

ts
 u

n
d

e
r 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n



Co
nt

ra
 c

os
ta

 c
ou

nt
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 r

et
ir

em
en

t 
as

so
ci

at
io

n 
 ▎

4

P
la

n
 T

y
p

e
:

IR
C

 S
e

ct
io

n
 1

1
5

 I
rr

e
vo

ca
b

le
 E

xc
lu

si
ve

B
e

n
e

fi
t 

Tr
u

st

T
ru

st
e

e
 A

p
p

ro
a

c
h

:
D

is
cr

e
ti

o
n

a
ry

P
la

n
 E

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 D
a

te
:

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
1

, 2
0

1
8

P
la

n
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a

to
r:

G
a

il
 S

tr
o

h
l, 

C
h

ie
f 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 O

ff
ic

e
r

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

In
v

e
st

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

:
C

u
st

o
m

 (
A

ct
iv

e
) 
S

tr
a

te
g

y;
 I

n
d

iv
id

u
a

lA
cc

o
u

n
t

E
li

g
ib

il
it

y
: 

E
m

p
lo

ye
e

s 
o

f 
C

C
C

E
R

A
 t

h
a

t 
re

ti
re

 a
ft

e
r 

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 2

0
1

4

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 A
ge

nc
y’

s 
OP

EB
 P

la
n

A
S

 O
F

 D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 3
1

, 
2

0
1

9
:

In
it

ia
l 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
:

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

8
:  

$
2

,5
4

2
,4

7
6

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s:

$
8

2
8

,3
0

0

To
ta

l 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s:
$

3
,3

7
0

,7
7

6

D
is

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
ts

:
$

0

E
x

p
e

n
se

s:
($

1
6

,9
3

4
)

To
ta

l 
In

v
e

st
m

e
n

t 
E

a
rn

in
g

s:
$

3
4

5
,1

1
1

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
B

a
la

n
c

e
:

$
3

,6
9

8
,9

5
3



Co
nt

ra
 c

os
ta

 c
ou

nt
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 r

et
ir

em
en

t 
as

so
ci

at
io

n 
 ▎

5

•
W

e
 h

a
ve

 r
e

ce
iv

e
d

 t
h

e
 a

ct
u

a
ri

a
l r

e
p

o
rt

 b
y
 M

il
li
m

a
n

d
a

te
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 1
8

, 2
0

1
9

 w
it

h
 a

 

m
e

a
su

re
m

e
n

t 
d

a
te

 a
s 

o
f 

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 2

0
1

8
. 
In

 t
h

e
 t

a
b

le
 b

e
lo

w
, w

e
 h

a
ve

 

su
m

m
a

ri
ze

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

su
lt

s.

OP
EB

 A
ct

ua
ri

al
 R

es
ul

ts

D
e

m
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
 S

tu
d

y
M

e
a

su
re

m
e

n
t 

D
a

te
:

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 2

0
1

8

A
c
ti

v
e

s
5

2

R
e

ti
re

e
s

4

T
o

ta
l

5
6

A
v

e
ra

g
e

 A
c
ti

v
e

 A
g

e
4

7
.0

0

A
v

e
ra

g
e

 A
c
ti

v
e

 A
g

e
n

c
y

 S
e

rv
ic

e
9

.9
8



Co
nt

ra
 c

os
ta

 c
ou

nt
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 r

et
ir

em
en

t 
as

so
ci

at
io

n 
 ▎

6

OP
EB

 A
ct

ua
ri

al
 R

es
ul

ts

M
e

a
su

re
m

e
n

t 
D

a
te

: 
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

3
1

, 
2

0
1

8

(P
re

fu
n

d
in

g
) 

D
is

c
o

u
n

t 
R

a
te

: 
6

.7
5

%

T
o

ta
l 

O
P

E
B

 L
ia

b
il

it
y

 (
T

O
L

)

A
ct

u
a

ri
a

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

b
il
it

y 
(A

A
L)

$
4

,7
1

0
,0

0
0

P
la

n
 F

id
u

c
ia

ry
 N

e
t 

P
o

si
ti

o
n

A
ct

u
a

ri
a

l V
a

lu
e 

o
f 

A
ss

et
s

$
2

,5
4

2
,0

0
0

N
e

t 
O

P
E

B
 L

ia
b

il
it

y
 (

N
O

L
)

U
n

fu
n

d
ed

 A
ct

u
a

ri
a

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

b
il
it

y 
(U

A
A

L)
$

2
,1

6
8

,0
0

0

F
u

n
d

e
d

 R
a

ti
o

 (
%

)
5

4
.0

%

A
n

n
u

a
l 

D
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 (
A

D
C

)

A
n

n
u

a
l R

eq
u

ir
ed

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 (

A
R

C
)

$
5

3
6

,0
0

0

A
n

n
u

a
l 

B
e

n
e

fi
t 

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 

(P
a

y
-a

s-
y

o
u

-G
o

)
$

5
0

,0
0

0

R
u

le
 o

f 
th

u
m

b
:

F
o

r 
e

ve
ry

 o
n

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 
in

cr
e

a
se

 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

is
co

u
n

t 
ra

te
, 
th

e
 u

n
fu

n
d

e
d

 l
ia

b
il
it

y
 i
s 

lo
w

e
re

d
 b

y
 1

0
-1

2
%

.



Co
nt

ra
 c

os
ta

 c
ou

nt
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 r

et
ir

em
en

t 
as

so
ci

at
io

n 
 ▎

7

Hi
gh

M
ar

k 
Ca

pi
ta

l 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
Re

vi
ew



C
C

C
E

R
A

 O
P

E
B

 P
L

A
N

F
o

u
rt

h
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

0
1

9

P
re

s
e
n

te
d

 b
y

A
n

d
re

w
 B

ro
w

n
, 
C

F
A

8



9
P

A
R

S
: 

C
C

C
E

R
A

H
IG

H
M

A
R

K
 2

0
2
0
 F

O
R

E
C

A
S

T

G
D

P
 

1
.9

%
 -

 2
.5

%

S
&

P
5
0
0
 e

a
rn

in
g

s
  

$
1
7
2
 –

 $
1
7
8

U
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
 

3
.7

0
%

C
o

re
 P

C
E

 I
n

fl
a
ti

o
n

 
1
.7

%
 -

 2
.0

%

F
e
d

 F
u

n
d

s
 T

a
rg

e
t 

1
.2

5
%

 -
 1

.7
5
%

2
0
2
0



A
s
s
e
t 

A
ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

C
o

m
m

it
te

e

K
ey

 G
lo

b
al

 In
ve

st
m

en
t

T
h

em
es

G
lo

b
al

 E
co

n
o

m
y 

R
es

et
s

•
E

co
no

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 d
ec

el
er

at
in

g 
as

 th
e 

cy
cl

e 
ag

es
 a

nd
 g

eo
po

lit
ic

al
 te

ns
io

ns
 in

cr
ea

se

•
C

or
po

ra
te

 p
ro

fit
 g

ro
w

th
 w

ea
k,

 m
ar

gi
ns

 u
nd

er
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

fr
om

 ta
rif

fs
 a

nd
 h

ig
he

r 
la

bo
r 

co
st

s

•
S

of
t l

an
di

ng
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

as
 m

an
uf

ac
tu

rin
g 

w
ea

kn
es

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
bo

tto
m

in
g

•
U

S
 c

on
su

m
er

 c
on

fid
en

ce
 r

em
ai

ns
 h

ea
lth

ily
 / 

ac
tin

g 
as

 a
 s

ta
bi

liz
er

M
o

n
et

ar
y 

P
o

lic
y 

A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

iv
e

•
G

lo
ba

l c
en

tr
al

 b
an

ks
 h

av
e 

re
tr

ea
te

d 
to

 e
as

in
g 

bi
as

 a
s 

ec
on

om
y 

sl
ow

s 
un

de
r 

tig
ht

er
 fi

na
nc

ia
l c

on
di

tio
ns

•
T

he
 F

ed
 r

es
po

nd
ed

 to
 m

ar
ke

t f
ea

rs
 o

f s
lo

w
in

g 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 w

ith
 3

 c
ut

s 
in

 2
01

9

•
W

ea
k 

in
fla

tio
n 

pr
ov

id
es

 c
ov

er
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 fo

r 
F

ed
 to

 lo
w

er
 r

at
es

•
P

ro
ac

tiv
el

y 
ea

si
ng

 p
ol

ic
y 

m
ay

 e
xt

en
d 

th
e 

cy
cl

e,
 b

ut
 li

m
its

 c
ou

nt
er

 m
ea

su
re

s 
ce

nt
ra

l b
an

ks
 c

an
 d

ep
lo

y 
du

rin
g 

 c
on

tr
ac

tio
ns

L
ev

er
ag

e 
 

In
cr

ea
si

n
g

•
D

el
ev

er
ag

in
g 

in
 th

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

se
ct

or
 o

ffs
et

 b
y 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 d

eb
t b

ur
de

n 
in

 p
ub

lic
 a

nd
 c

or
po

ra
te

 s
ec

to
rs

•
U

S
 b

ud
ge

t d
ef

ic
it 

ov
er

 4
%

 o
f G

D
P

 (
un

co
m

m
on

 o
ut

si
de

 o
f r

ec
es

si
on

s 
an

d 
w

ar
 ti

m
e)

•
H

ig
h 

de
bt

 le
ve

ls
 w

ill
 w

ei
gh

 o
n 

ec
on

om
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 p
ot

en
tia

l

•
D

eb
t s

at
ur

at
io

n 
fo

llo
w

ed
 b

e 
ra

te
 n

or
m

al
iz

at
io

n 
w

ill
 in

cr
ea

se
 r

is
k 

of
 c

re
di

t e
ve

nt
s 

–
po

ss
ib

le
 r

es
ci

ss
io

n 
tr

ig
ge

r

Tr
ad

e 
Te

n
si

o
n

s 

T
h

aw

•
U

S
 / 

C
hi

na
 m

ak
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
n 

tr
ad

e 
ne

go
tia

tio
ns

 w
ith

 p
ar

tia
l “

ph
as

e 
on

e”
 d

ea
l

•
H

ea
dl

in
es

 o
n 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
r 

se
tb

ac
ks

 w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 s

w
ay

 s
en

tim
en

t

•
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
in

ce
nt

iv
iz

ed
 n

ot
 to

 r
is

k 
ec

on
om

ic
 h

ar
m

 a
s 

el
ec

tio
n 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es

•
T

ra
de

 w
ar

 w
ill

 lo
om

 o
ve

r 
co

rp
or

at
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t d

ec
is

io
ns

 w
ith

ou
t p
er
ma

ne
nt 

re
so

lu
tio

n

P
o

lit
ic

al
 C

lim
at

e

•
U

S
 p

re
si

de
nt

ia
l e

le
ct

io
n 

ye
ar

 w
ill

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
 th

e 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 p
ol

ar
ity

 in
 W

as
hi

ng
to

n

•
D

em
oc

ra
tic

 c
an

di
da

te
s 

ra
ng

e 
fr

om
 p

ro
gr

es
si

ve
 to

 c
en

tr
is

t r
ep

re
se

nt
in

g 
a 

w
id

e 
sp

ec
tr

um
 o

f p
ol

ic
y 

pe
rs

pe
ct

iv
es

•
A

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 p
ro

ba
bi

lit
y 

of
 a

 p
ro

gr
es

si
ve

 c
an

di
da

te
 ta

ki
ng

 o
ffi

ce
 m

ay
 b

e 
m

et
 w

ith
 w

or
ry

 b
y 

in
ve

st
or

s

•
T

he
 li

ke
lih

oo
d 

of
 m

aj
or

 p
ol

ic
y 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 e

ith
er

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
is

 lo
w

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

n 
of

 a
 d

iv
id

ed
 c

on
gr

es
s

C
h

in
a 

Tr
an

si
ti

o
n

s

•
G

lo
ba

l g
ro

w
th

 h
ig

hl
y 

le
ve

re
d 

to
 e

m
er

ge
nc

e 
of

 C
hi

ne
se

 m
id

dl
e 

cl
as

s

•
E

co
no

m
y 

be
in

g 
w

ea
ne

d 
of

f i
nv

es
tm

en
t s

pe
nd

in
g 

to
 b

ec
om

e 
m

or
e 

re
lia

nt
 o

n 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n

•
G

ov
er

nm
en

t r
ei

gn
in

g 
in

 e
xc

es
si

ve
 c

re
di

t e
xp

an
si

on
, y

et
 n

ee
ds

 to
 r

ee
ng

ag
e 

st
im

ul
us

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
“s

af
e”

 d
ec

el
er

at
io

n

•
H

ar
d 

la
nd

in
g 

w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 r

ip
pl

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

gl
ob

al
 e

co
no

m
y

10
P

A
R

S
: 

C
C

C
E

R
A



A
c
c
o

u
n

t
In

c
e
p

ti
o

n
:

0
2
/0

1
/2

0
1
9

T
h

e
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
w

a
s

in
it
ia

te
d

o
n

J
a

n
u

a
ry

1
5
,

2
0
1

9
.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
c
e
p
ti
o

n
is

a
s

o
f

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

1
,

2
0

1
9
.

R
e
tu

rn
s

a
re

g
ro

s
s

o
f

a
c
c
o
u
n
t

le
v
e
l

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

a
d
v
is

o
ry

fe
e
s

a
n

d
n

e
t

o
f

a
n
y

fe
e
s
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
fe

e
s

to
m

a
n
a
g
e

m
u
tu

a
l
fu

n
d

o
r

e
x
c
h
a

n
g

e
tr

a
d
e

d
fu

n
d

h
o
ld

in
g
s
.

R
e
tu

rn
s

fo
r

p
e
ri
o

d
s

o
v
e
r

o
n
e

y
e
a
r

a
re

a
n

n
u

a
liz

e
d
.

T
h
e

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
h
a
s

b
e
e

n
o
b
ta

in
e
d

fr
o
m

s
o
u
rc

e
s

b
e
lie

v
e
d

to
b

e

a
c
c
u
ra

te
a
n

d
re

lia
b
le

.
P

a
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

is
n
o
t

in
d
ic

a
ti
v
e

o
f

fu
tu

re
re

tu
rn

s
.

S
e
c
u
ri
ti
e
s

a
re

n
o
t

F
D

IC
in

s
u
re

d
,

h
a
v
e

n
o

b
a
n
k

g
u
a
ra

n
te

e
,

a
n

d
m

a
y

lo
s
e

v
a
lu

e
.

C
C

C
E

R
A

P
o
lic

y
B

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

c
o
n
s
is

ts
o
f

2
0
%

S
&

P
5
0
0

C
o
m

p
o
s
it
e

In
d
e

x
,

2
0
%

M
S

C
I

E
A

F
E

In
d
e

x
,

1
5
%

M
S

C
I

E
M

F
re

e
In

d
e

x
,

1
5
%

B
B

G
B

a
rc

la
y
s

U
S

A
g
g
re

g
a
te

B
d

In
d

e
x
,

1
5
%

IC
E

B
o
fA

M
L

1
-3

Y
r

U
S

C
o
rp

/G
o
v
t,

8
%

B
B

G
B

a
rc

la
y
s

In
te

rm
e
d
ia

te

U
S

T
re

a
s

B
d

In
d
e
x
,

5
%

R
u
s
s
e
ll

2
0
0
0

In
d
e
x
,

a
n
d

2
%

W
ils

h
ir
e

R
E

IT
In

d
e
x
.

P
A

R
S

: 
C

C
C

E
R

A
11

3
 M

o
n
th

s

In
c
e
p
tio

n
 

to
 D

a
te

 

C
a
s
h
 E

q
u
iv

a
le

n
ts

.4
1

1
.8

8

L
ip

p
e
r 

M
o
n
e
y
 M

a
rk

e
t 
F

u
n
d
s
 I
n
d
e
x

.3
8

1
.7

8

T
o
ta

l F
ix

e
d
 In

c
o
m

e
.0

0
6
.0

1

B
B

G
 B

a
rc

la
y
s
 U

S
 A

g
g
re

g
a
te

 B
d
 I
n
d
e
x
 

.1
8

7
.5

7

IC
E

 B
o
fA

 1
-3

 Y
r 

U
S

 C
o
rp

/G
o
v
t

.6
1

3
.6

7

B
B

G
 B

a
rc

la
y
s
 I
n
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 U

S
 T

re
a
s
 B

d
 I
n
d
e
x

.0
1

4
.7

7

T
o
ta

l E
q
u
iti

e
s

8
.5

7
1
5
.9

9

L
a
rg

e
 C

a
p
 F

u
n
d
s

8
.9

0
2
2
.3

2

S
&

P
 5

0
0
 C

o
m

p
o
s
ite

 I
n
d
e
x

9
.0

7
2
1
.7

3

S
m

a
ll 

C
a
p
 F

u
n
d
s

8
.2

0
1
3
.8

7

R
u
s
s
e
ll 

2
0
0
0
 I
n
d
e
x
 

9
.9

4
1
2
.8

3

In
te

rn
a
tio

n
a
l E

q
u
iti

e
s

9
.7

8
1
2
.4

8

M
S

C
I 
E

A
F

E
 I
n
d
e
x
 

8
.1

7
1
4
.4

9

M
S

C
I 
E

M
 F

re
e
 I
n
d
e
x
 

1
1
.8

4
8
.8

9

R
e
a
l E

s
ta

te
 -

 E
T

F
s
 /
 S

c
tr

 F
d
s

.6
8

1
5
.9

6

W
ils

h
ir
e
 R

E
IT

 I
n
d
e
x

-1
.1

4
1
2
.8

3

T
o
ta

l M
a
n
a
g
e
d
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

5
.1

2
1
2
.0

6

T
o
ta

l A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
N

e
t 
o
f 
F

e
e
s

5
.0

3
1
1
.7

5

C
C

C
E

R
A

 O
P

E
B

 P
o
lic

y
 B

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

5
.7

7
1
1
.6

4

S
e

le
c

te
d

 P
e

ri
o

d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

P
A

R
S

/C
C

C
E

R
A

 1
1

5
P

A
c

c
o

u
n

t 
6

7
4

6
0

6
0

5
0

0

P
e

ri
o

d
 E

n
d

in
g

: 
 1

2
/3

1
/2

0
1

9



A
s
s
e
t 

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

 –
C

C
C

E
R

A
 O

P
E

B

A
s
 o

f 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

3
1
, 

2
0
1
9

12
P

A
R

S
: 

C
C

C
E

R
A

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

A
ss

e
t 

A
ll

o
c
a

ti
o

n
In

v
e

st
m

e
n

t 
V

e
h

ic
le

E
q

u
it

y
6
2
.0

3
%

R
a
n

g
e
: 

5
5
%

-7
5
%

2
,2

9
3
,1

9
0

L
a
rg

e
 C

a
p
 C

o
re

IV
V

1
7
.0

0
%

iS
h
a
re

s
 C

o
re

 S
&

P
 5

0
0
 E

T
F

6
2
8
,3

7
9

L
a
rg

e
 C

a
p
 V

a
lu

e
IV

E
2
.9

9
%

iS
h
a
re

s
 S

&
P

 5
0
0
 V

a
lu

e
 E

T
F

1
1
0
,5

7
7

S
m

a
ll 

C
a
p

V
B

4
.9

6
%

V
a
n
g
u
a
rd

 S
m

a
ll-

C
a
p
 E

T
F

1
8
3
,1

9
8

In
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

o
re

V
E

A
2
0
.0

6
%

V
a
n
g
u
a
rd

 F
T
S

E
 D

e
ve

lo
p
e
d
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 E
T
F

7
4
1
,4

4
2

E
m

e
rg

in
g
 M

a
rk

e
ts

V
W

O
1
3
.9

9
%

V
a
n
g
u
a
rd

 F
T
S

E
 E

m
e
rg

in
g
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 E
T
F

5
1
7
,3

2
0

R
e
a
l 
E

s
ta

te
V

N
Q

3
.0

4
%

V
a
n
g
u
a
rd

 R
e
a
l 
E

s
ta

te
 E

T
F

1
1
2
,2

7
6

F
ix

e
d

 I
n

c
o

m
e

3
7
.2

7
%

R
a
n

g
e
: 

2
5
%

-4
5
%

1
,3

7
7
,9

4
1

S
h
o
rt

-T
e
rm

B
S

V
9
.9

9
%

V
a
n
g
u
a
rd

 S
h
o
rt

-T
e
rm

 B
o
n
d
 E

T
F

3
6
9
,4

3
6

In
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
-T

e
rm

D
B

L
F

X
6
.4

3
%

D
o
u
b
le

L
in

e
 C

o
re

 F
ix

e
d
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 I

2
3
7
,6

3
7

P
T
T
R

X
6
.4

5
%

P
IM

C
O

 T
o
ta

l 
R

e
tu

rn
 I
n
s
tl

2
3
8
,4

2
2

P
T
R

Q
X

6
.4

7
%

P
G

IM
 T

o
ta

l 
R

e
tu

rn
 B

o
n
d
 R

6
2
3
9
,0

6
5

G
O

V
T

7
.9

4
%

iS
h
a
re

s
 U

S
 T

re
a
s
u
ry

 B
o
n
d
 E

T
F

2
9
3
,3

8
1

C
a

sh
0
.7

0
%

R
a
n

g
e
: 

0
%

-2
0
%

2
5
,7

8
9

F
G

Z
X
X

0
.7

0
%

F
ir
s
t 

A
m

e
ri
c
a
n
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

O
b
lig

 Z
2
5
,7

8
9

T
O

T
A

L
1
0
0
.0

0
%

3
,6

9
6
,9

2
0



13
P

A
R

S
: 

C
C

C
E

R
A

1
-M

o
n

th
3
-M

o
n

th
Y

e
a

r-
to

-
1
-Y

e
a

r
3
-Y

e
a

r
5
-Y

e
a

r
1
0
-Y

e
a

r

F
u

n
d

 N
a

m
e

R
e

tu
rn

R
e

tu
rn

D
a

te
R

e
tu

rn
R

e
tu

rn
R

e
tu

rn
R

e
tu

rn

iS
h
a
re

s
 C

o
re

 S
&

P
 5

0
0
 E

T
F

3
.0

1
9
.0

5
3
1
.4

4
3
1
.4

4
1
5
.2

3
1
1
.6

5
1
3
.4

9

iS
h
a
re

s
 S

&
P

 5
0
0
 V

a
lu

e
 E

T
F

3
.1

0
9
.8

8
3
1
.7

1
3
1
.7

1
1
1
.3

1
9
.3

5
1
1
.9

7

V
a
n
g
u
a
rd

 S
m

a
ll-

C
a
p
 E

T
F

2
.1

9
8
.1

4
2
7
.3

7
2
7
.3

7
1
0
.3

2
8
.8

9
1
2
.8

1

V
a
n
g
u
a
rd

 F
T
S

E
 D

e
ve

lo
p
e
d
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 E
T
F

3
.4

8
8
.3

5
2
2
.0

8
2
2
.0

8
9
.7

0
6
.1

9
5
.7

5

V
a
n
g
u
a
rd

 F
T
S

E
 E

m
e
rg

in
g
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 E
T
F

6
.9

5
1
1
.3

1
2
0
.4

0
2
0
.4

0
1
0
.5

6
5
.0

3
3
.4

6

V
a
n
g
u
a
rd

 R
e
a
l 
E

s
ta

te
 E

T
F

0
.8

0
0
.6

0
2
8
.9

1
2
8
.9

1
8
.3

6
7
.1

7
1
1
.9

7

P
IM

C
O

 T
o
ta

l 
R

e
tu

rn
 I
n
s
tl

-0
.2

5
-0

.3
0

8
.2

6
8
.2

6
4
.3

1
3
.2

5
4
.1

9

iS
h
a
re

s
 U

S
 T

re
a
s
u
ry

 B
o
n
d
 E

T
F

-0
.5

7
-0

.8
7

6
.7

1
6
.7

1
3
.1

8
2
.2

4
--

D
o
u
b
le

L
in

e
 C

o
re

 F
ix

e
d
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 I

0
.2

3
0
.3

2
7
.9

9
7
.9

9
4
.1

6
3
.4

4
--

P
G

IM
 T

o
ta

l 
R

e
tu

rn
 B

o
n
d
 R

6
0
.0

8
0
.3

5
1
1
.1

3
1
1
.1

3
5
.6

2
4
.3

3
5
.5

2

V
a
n
g
u
a
rd

 S
h
o
rt

-T
e
rm

 B
o
n
d
 E

T
F

0
.1

6
0
.4

4
4
.9

2
4
.9

2
2
.4

7
1
.9

5
2
.0

2

B
B

g
B

a
rc

 U
S

 A
g

g
 B

o
n

d
 T

R
 U

S
D

-0
.0

7
0
.1

8
8
.7

2
8
.7

2
4
.0

3
3
.0

5
3
.7

5

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

 S
E

I 
In

ve
s
tm

e
n
ts

, 
M

o
rn

in
g
s
ta

r 
In

ve
s
tm

e
n
ts

R
E

A
L

 E
S

T
A

T
E

 F
U

N
D

S

B
O

N
D

 F
U

N
D

S

R
e
tu

rn
s
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 o

n
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
re

 n
o
t 

a
n
n
u
a
liz

e
d
. 

 P
a
s
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 n

o
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fu

tu
re

 r
e
s
u
lt
s
. 

 T
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 o

b
ta

in
e
d
 f

ro
m

 

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 b

e
lie

ve
d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
 a

n
d
 r

e
lia

b
le

. 
 S

e
c
u
ri
ti
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

F
D

IC
 i
n
s
u
re

d
, 

h
a
ve

 n
o
 b

a
n
k

 g
u
a
ra

n
te

e
 a

n
d
 m

a
y 

lo
s
e
 v

a
lu

e
.

C
C

C
E

R
A

F
o

r 
P

e
ri

o
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 

2
0

1
9

L
A

R
G

E
 C

A
P

 E
Q

U
IT

Y
 F

U
N

D
S

S
M

A
L

L
 C

A
P

 E
Q

U
IT

Y
 F

U
N

D
S

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 E

Q
U

IT
Y

 F
U

N
D

S



Co
nt

ra
 c

os
ta

 c
ou

nt
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 r

et
ir

em
en

t 
as

so
ci

at
io

n 
 ▎

14

•
T
o

 a
ss

is
t 

o
u

r 
p

u
b

li
c
 a

g
e

n
c
y

 c
li

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 G
A

S
B

 7
4

/7
5

, 
P

A
R

S
 w

il
l 

b
e

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

th
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
:

—
A

n
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l t

ru
st

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
e

a
ch

 a
g

e
n

cy
’s

 p
la

n
 a

ss
e

ts
 t

h
a

t 
sh

o
w

s 
a

 

re
co

n
ci

li
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

ss
e

ts
 h

e
ld

 a
t 

th
e

 b
e

g
in

n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 f

is
ca

l y
e

a
r 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 

e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 f

is
ca

l y
e

a
r,

 b
re

a
k

in
g

 o
u

t 
th

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 p

la
n

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s,

 

b
e

n
e

fi
t 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
, e

x
p

e
n

se
s,

 a
n

d
 i
n

ve
st

m
e

n
t 

e
a

rn
in

g
s

—
Y
e

a
r-

e
n

d
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 T
ru

st
 a

s 
a

 w
h

o
le

 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 

S
ch

e
d

u
le

 o
f 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s 
in

 F
id

u
ci

a
ry

 N
e

t 
P

o
si

ti
o

n
 b

y
 E

m
p

lo
y
e

r 
co

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 

W
h

it
e

 N
e

ls
o

n
 D

ie
h

l 
E

va
n

s 
th

a
t 

is
 i
n

te
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
li
a

n
t 

w
it

h
 G

A
S

B
 7

4
/7

5
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
. 
 

—
S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 S

O
C

1
-T

y
p

e
 2

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 o
ve

r 
th

e
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

a
ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
d

d
it

io
n

s 
a

n
d

 d
e

d
u

ct
io

n
s 

to
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

r 
a

cc
o

u
n

ts
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 

T
ru

st

—
In

ve
st

m
e

n
t 

a
ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

 d
a

ta
 a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 i
n

ve
st

m
e

n
t 

p
o

lic
ie

s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

ss
e

t 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 a
ll
o

w
a

b
le

 a
ss

e
t 

cl
a

ss
 a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

 

ra
n

g
e

s

GA
SB

 7
4/

75
 R

ep
or

ti
ng



Tr
av

el
 R

ei
m

b
u

rs
em

en
t 

an
d

 
Ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
 T

ra
ck

in
g 

Pr
o

ce
ss

Fe
b

ru
ar

y 
1

2
, 2

0
2

0

A
n

n
e

 S
o

m
m

e
rs

A
d

m
in

/H
R

 M
an

ag
er

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/12/20Agenda Item#10



Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

 R
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
•

Th
e 

C
o

u
n

ty
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e
s 

R
et

ir
em

en
t 

La
w

 o
f 

1
9

3
7

 (
C

ER
L)

 r
eq

u
ir

es
 t

h
at

 B
o

ar
d

 m
em

b
er

s 
re

ce
iv

e 
2

4
 h

o
u

rs
 o

f 
ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 f
ir

st
 2

 y
ea

rs
 o

f 
as

su
m

in
g 

o
ff

ic
e 

an
d

 f
o

r 
ev

er
y 

su
b

se
q

u
e

n
t 

2-
ye

ar
 p

er
io

d
 in

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e 
B

o
ar

d
 m

em
b

er
 s

er
ve

s 
o

n
 t

h
e 

B
o

ar
d

. 
(G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

t 
C

o
d

e 
§

3
1

5
2

2
.8

.)
 

•
Th

e 
C

C
C

ER
A

 F
id

u
ci

ar
y 

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

 P
o

lic
y 

o
u

tl
in

es
 t

h
e

 n
ee

d
 f

o
r 

B
o

ar
d

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 t
o

 d
ev

el
o

p
 

an
d

 m
ai

n
ta

in
 a

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
at

e 
le

ve
l o

f 
kn

o
w

le
d

ge
 a

n
d

 s
ki

ll 
n

e
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 a
d

m
in

is
te

r 
th

e
 

re
ti

re
m

en
t 

sy
st

em
 p

ru
d

e
n

tl
y.

 

•
B

o
ar

d
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

re
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 t
o

 r
ec

ei
ve

 e
th

ic
s 

tr
ai

n
in

g 
w

it
h

in
 o

n
e 

ye
ar

 o
f 

as
su

m
in

g 
o

ff
ic

e 
an

d
 t

h
en

 e
ve

ry
 t

w
o

 y
ea

rs
 f

o
llo

w
in

g.
 (

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
t 

C
o

d
e 
§

5
3

2
3

5
.)

•
N

ew
ly

 e
le

ct
ed

 o
r 

ap
p

o
in

te
d

 B
o

ar
d

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
re

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 r

ec
ei

ve
 s

ex
u

al
 h

ar
as

sm
en

t 
p

re
ve

n
ti

o
n

 t
ra

in
in

g 
an

d
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 (
G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

t 
C

o
d

e 
Se

ct
io

n
s 

5
3

2
3

7-
5

3
2

3
7

.5
).

 E
ac

h
 

B
o

ar
d

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

m
u

st
 r

ec
ei

ve
 a

t 
le

as
t 

tw
o

 h
o

u
rs

 o
f 

se
xu

al
 h

ar
as

sm
e

n
t 

p
re

ve
n

ti
o

n
 

tr
ai

n
in

g 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 f
ir

st
 s

ix
 m

o
n

th
s 

o
f 

ta
ki

n
g 

o
ff

ic
e,

 a
n

d
 e

ve
ry

 t
w

o
 y

ea
rs

 t
h

e
re

af
te

r.
 



C
C

C
ER

A
’s

 T
ra

ve
l E

xp
en

se
 

R
ei

m
b

u
rs

em
en

t 
Po

lic
y

•
Se

ts
 t

h
e 

tr
av

el
 g

u
id

el
in

es

•
Se

ts
 r

ei
m

b
u

rs
em

en
t 

gu
id

el
in

es

•
D

el
eg

at
es

 t
o

 C
EO

 t
h

e 
au

th
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 a
p

p
ro

ve
 C

C
C

ER
A

 s
ta

ff
 t

ra
ve

l



C
C

C
ER

A
’s

 T
ra

ve
l E

xp
en

se
 

R
ei

m
b

u
rs

em
en

t 
Po

lic
y

•
Th

e 
B

o
ar

d
 is

 c
h

ar
ge

d
 w

it
h

 d
ef

ra
yi

n
g 

re
as

o
n

ab
le

 e
xp

e
n

se
s 

o
f 

ad
m

in
is

te
ri

n
g 

th
e 

sy
st

em
.

•
R

ei
m

b
u

rs
em

en
t 

fo
r 

ex
p

en
se

s 
m

u
st

 n
o

t 
ex

ce
ed

 t
h

at
 w

h
ic

h
 is

 
re

as
o

n
ab

le
 a

n
d

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 f

o
r 

tr
av

el
.



H
o

w
 is

 a
 B

o
ar

d
 m

em
b

er
 a

p
p

ro
ve

d
 fo

r 
tr

av
el

?

•
Tr

av
el

 it
em

s 
th

at
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
cr

it
er

ia
 a

re
 in

cl
u

d
ed

 o
n

 a
n

 
A

ge
n

d
a 

o
f 

th
e 

B
o

ar
d

 o
f 

R
et

ir
em

en
t 

fo
r 

ap
p

ro
va

l:

•
A

u
th

o
ri

za
ti

o
n

 m
ay

 b
e 

gr
an

te
d

 if
 t

h
e 

n
ec

es
sa

ry
 f

u
n

d
s 

ar
e 

av
ai

la
b

le
.

•
If

 t
h

e 
p

ro
gr

am
 in

cl
u

d
es

 s
u

b
je

ct
 m

at
te

r 
d

ir
ec

tl
y 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 
re

ti
re

m
en

t 
is

su
es

.

•
Th

e 
R

et
ir

em
en

t 
A

ss
o

ci
at

io
n

 w
ill

 b
en

ef
it

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

at
te

n
d

an
ce

.



H
o

w
 m

an
y 

b
o

ar
d

 m
em

b
er

s 
ca

n
 b

e 
ap

p
ro

ve
d

 t
o

 
at

te
n

d
 a

 c
o

n
fe

re
n

ce
?

Is
 t

h
e 

co
n

fe
re

n
ce

 o
p

en
 t

o
 t

h
e 

p
u

b
lic

?

N
o

, t
h

e 
co

n
fe

re
n

ce
 o

n
ly

 a
llo

w
s 

af
fi

lia
te

d
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

s 
/ 

in
d

iv
id

u
al

s 
to

 r
eg

is
te

r.
•

If
 t

h
e 

co
n

fe
re

n
ce

 is
 n

o
t 

o
p

en
 t

o
 t

h
e 

p
u

b
lic

 t
h

an
 t

h
e 

m
ax

im
u

m
 

n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
B

o
ar

d
 m

em
b

er
s 

th
at

 c
an

 a
tt

en
d

 is
 4

.

Ye
s,

 t
h

e 
co

n
fe

re
n

ce
 a

llo
w

s 
m

em
b

er
s 

o
f 

th
e 

p
u

b
lic

 t
o

 
re

gi
st

er
 f

o
r 

th
e 

co
n

fe
re

n
ce

.
•

Th
e 

co
n

fe
re

n
ce

 is
 o

p
en

 t
o

 t
h

e 
p

u
b

lic
 t

h
an

 a
ll 

B
o

ar
d

 m
em

b
er

s 
ca

n
 a

tt
en

d
. B

o
ar

d
 m

em
b

er
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 t
ak

e 
ca

u
ti

o
n

 n
o

t 
to

 d
is

cu
ss

 
C

C
C

ER
A

 b
u

si
n

es
s 

am
o

n
g 

th
em

se
lv

es
.



Ex
am

p
le

s 
o

f 
C

o
n

fe
re

n
ce

s 
th

at
 a

re
 O

p
en

 t
o

 t
h

e 
Pu

b
lic

:

C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

u
b
lic

 R
e
ti
re

m
e
n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
s

ST
A

TE
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TI
O

N
 o

f
C

O
U

N
TY

 R
ET

IR
EM

EN
T 

SY
ST

EM
S



Th
e 

B
o

ar
d

 h
as

 a
p

p
ro

ve
d

 t
h

e 
Tr

av
el

 -
n

o
w

 w
h

at
?

•
D

u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

B
o

ar
d

 m
ee

ti
n

g,
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 s
ta

ff
 n

o
te

 w
h

ic
h

 B
o

ar
d

 
m

em
b

er
s 

ex
p

re
ss

 in
te

re
st

 in
 a

tt
en

d
in

g 
ea

ch
 t

ra
ve

l i
te

m
 p

re
se

n
te

d
 f

o
r 

ap
p

ro
va

l o
n

 t
h

e 
ag

en
d

a.

•
Th

e 
B

o
ar

d
 m

em
b

er
s 

th
at

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

te
re

st
 w

ill
 r

ec
ei

ve
 a

n
 e

m
ai

l f
ro

m
 a

n
 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
 s

ta
ff

 m
em

b
er

 r
eq

u
es

ti
n

g 
tr

av
el

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 in
cl

u
d

in
g:

•
Fl

ig
h

ts

•
H

o
te

l n
ig

h
t 

st
ay

s

•
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

C
o

n
fe

re
n

ce
 m

ay
 n

ee
d

 f
o

r 
at

te
n

d
ee

s



Tr
av

el
 A

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

•
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

va
ila

b
le

 t
o

 m
ak

e 
th

e 
tr

av
el

 
ar

ra
n

ge
m

en
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e 
B

o
ar

d
 m

em
b

er
s 

u
si

n
g 

a 
C

C
C

ER
A

 is
su

ed
 

cr
ed

it
 c

ar
d

.

•
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 s
ta

ff
 c

o
m

p
le

te
s 

th
e 

re
gi

st
ra

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

al
l B

o
ar

d
 

m
em

b
er

s 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h

e 
co

n
fe

re
n

ce
.



Tr
an

sp
o

rt
at

io
n

 C
o

n
si

d
er

at
io

n
s

•
Tr

an
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 is

 a
t 

th
e 

m
o

st
 r

ea
so

n
ab

le
 a

n
d

 c
o

st
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

 r
at

e 
an

d
 m

o
d

e 
o

f 
tr

av
el

.

•
M

ile
ag

e 
is

 r
ei

m
b

u
rs

ed
 a

t 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
IR

S 
ra

te
, w

h
ic

h
 d

o
es

 n
o

t 
ex

ce
ed

 t
h

e 
co

st
 o

f 
ro

u
n

d
 t

ri
p

 a
ir

fa
re

 p
lu

s 
re

as
o

n
ab

le
 e

xp
en

se
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

it
h

 a
ir

 t
ra

ve
l.



Lo
d

gi
n

g 
C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

s

•
R

es
er

va
ti

o
n

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
at

 t
h

e 
si

n
gl

e 
o

cc
u

p
an

cy
, r

eg
u

la
r 

ra
te

, 
p

lu
s 

ro
o

m
 t

ax
es

 a
n

d
 r

el
at

ed
 f

ee
s.

•
Pe

rs
o

n
al

 it
em

s 
i.e

. i
n

-r
o

o
m

 m
o

vi
es

, m
ea

ls
 f

o
r 

an
yo

n
e 

o
th

er
 

th
an

 t
h

e 
em

p
lo

ye
e,

 a
lc

o
h

o
l, 

p
er

so
n

al
 c

lo
th

in
g 

o
r 

to
ile

tr
ie

s,
 

et
c.

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e 
re

im
b

u
rs

ed
. 

If
 t

h
es

e 
it

em
s 

ar
e 

ch
ar

ge
d

 t
o

 t
h

e 
C

C
C

ER
A

 V
IS

A
, a

 c
h

ec
k 

sh
o

u
ld

 
b

e 
su

b
m

it
te

d
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 u

p
o

n
 r

et
u

rn
. T

h
e 

ch
ec

k 
sh

o
u

ld
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

p
ay

ab
le

 t
o

 C
C

C
ER

A
.



M
ea

l C
o

n
si

d
er

at
io

n
s

•
M

in
i b

ar
s 

in
 h

o
te

ls
 a

re
 n

o
t 

re
im

b
u

rs
ed

.

•
R

ei
m

b
u

rs
em

en
t 

is
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 w
h

en
 t

ra
ve

lin
g 

d
u

ri
n

g 
a 

m
ea

l 
p

er
io

d
 o

r 
th

e 
co

n
fe

re
n

ce
 r

eq
u

ir
es

 a
n

 o
ve

rn
ig

h
t 

st
ay

 (
e.

g.
 d

in
n

er
 

th
e 

n
ig

h
t 

b
ef

o
re

).

•
Ti

p
s 

o
n

 m
ea

ls
 u

p
 t

o
 2

0
%

 a
re

 r
ei

m
b

u
rs

ed
.

•
Th

e 
m

ax
im

u
m

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

re
im

b
u

rs
ed

 f
o

r 
al

l m
ea

ls
 in

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
d

ay
 

is
 $

1
0

0
.

•
R

ei
m

b
u

rs
em

en
t 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e 
p

ro
vi

d
ed

 f
o

r 
al

co
h

o
lic

 b
ev

er
ag

es
.



O
th

er
 C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

s

•
B

ri
d

ge
 T

o
lls

, p
o

rt
er

ag
e,

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
at

io
n

 a
re

 
re

im
b

u
rs

ab
le

 it
em

s.

•
Pa

rk
in

g,
 a

ir
p

o
rt

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
, t

ax
i, 

an
d

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
re

 r
ei

m
b

u
rs

ab
le

 it
em

s 
fo

r 
b

u
si

n
es

s 
re

as
o

n
s,

 i.
e.

 
tr

an
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 t

o
 a

n
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

co
n

fe
re

n
ce

.

•
R

ea
so

n
ab

le
 t

ip
s 

an
d

 g
ra

tu
it

ie
s 

ar
e 

re
im

b
u

rs
ab

le
.

K
EE

P
 A

LL
 IT

EM
IZ

ED
 R

EC
EI

P
TS



Th
e 

tr
av

el
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 a
rr

an
ge

d
 -

w
h

at
’s

 n
ex

t?

•
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 s
ta

ff
 w

ill
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

yo
u

 w
it

h
 a

 T
ra

ve
l I

ti
n

er
ar

y 
w

it
h

 
yo

u
r 

co
n

fi
rm

at
io

n
 n

u
m

b
er

s.

•
If

 y
o

u
 a

re
 f

ly
in

g,
 y

o
u

 a
re

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 
ch

ec
ki

n
g-

in
 f

o
r 

yo
u

r 
fl

ig
h

t.

•
If

 y
o

u
 a

re
 s

ta
yi

n
g 

at
 a

 h
o

te
l, 

yo
u

 w
ill

 n
ee

d
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

yo
u

r 
id

en
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
 c

re
d

it
 c

ar
d

 f
o

r 
th

em
 t

o
 k

ee
p

 o
n

 f
ile

. 
•

C
C

C
ER

A
 p

ro
vi

d
es

 a
 c

re
d

it
 c

ar
d

 a
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e 

h
o

te
l f

o
r 

lo
d

gi
n

g 
b

o
o

ke
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
C

C
ER

A
 c

re
d

it
 c

ar
d

. T
h

e 
h

o
te

l s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e 
in

st
ru

ct
ed

 a
t 

ch
ec

k-
in

 t
o

 u
se

 t
h

e 
ca

rd
 o

n
 f

ile
 f

o
r 

th
e 

ap
p

ro
ve

d
 c

h
ar

ge
s.

•
In

 t
h

e 
Tr

av
el

 It
in

er
ar

y 
p

ac
ke

t,
 t

h
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
a 

C
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g 

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

 
Su

b
m

is
si

o
n

 f
o

rm
.



C
o

nt
in

u
in

g 
Ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
 S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 F

o
rm

Th
e 

C
ER

L 
re

q
u

ir
es

 t
h

e 
B

o
ar

d
 t

o
 m

ai
n

ta
in

 a
 r

ec
o

rd
 o

f 
b

o
ar

d
 

m
em

b
er

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
 p

o
lic

y,
 a

n
d

 p
o

st
 t

h
e 

p
o

lic
y 

an
d

 a
n

 a
n

n
u

al
 r

ep
o

rt
 o

n
 B

o
ar

d
 m

em
b

er
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
ce

 w
it

h
 

th
e 

p
o

lic
y 

o
n

 t
h

e 
re

ti
re

m
en

t 
sy

st
em

’s
 w

eb
si

te
.  

•
In

 o
rd

er
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 t

h
is

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

t,
 C

C
C

ER
A

 lo
gs

 a
ll 

co
n

ti
n

u
in

g 
ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
 h

o
u

rs
 s

u
b

m
it

te
d

 b
y 

B
o

ar
d

 m
em

b
er

s.

•
A

n
n

u
al

ly
 in

 J
an

u
ar

y,
 t

h
e 

lo
g 

is
 p

o
st

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

C
C

C
ER

A
 w

eb
si

te
.

•
P

ri
o

r 
to

 p
o

st
in

g 
th

e 
lo

g,
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 w
ill

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
a 

lis
t 

o
f 

al
l o

f 
th

e 
ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
al

 h
o

u
rs

 lo
gg

ed
 f

o
r 

yo
u

. P
le

as
e 

re
vi

ew
 y

o
u

r 
lo

g 
to

 e
n

su
re

 
ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
al

 h
o

u
rs

 t
h

at
 h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 r

ep
o

rt
ed

 a
re

 in
cl

u
d

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

lo
g.



Th
e 

tr
av

el
 is

 o
ve

r…
..

G
et

ti
n

g 
R

ei
m

b
u

rs
ed

:

•
C

o
m

p
le

te
 a

 t
ra

ve
l d

em
an

d
 a

n
d

 a
tt

ac
h

 a
ll 

it
em

iz
ed

 r
ec

ei
p

ts
 

in
cl

u
d

in
g 

h
o

te
l c

h
ar

ge
 r

ec
ei

p
ts

 a
n

d
 m

ea
l r

ec
ei

p
ts

. 

•
C

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d

 s
u

b
m

it
 t

h
e 

C
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g 

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

 S
u

b
m

is
si

o
n

 
Fo

rm
 (

if
 a

p
p

lic
ab

le
).

•
If

 a
 c

er
ti

fi
ca

te
 w

as
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 a
t 

th
e 

tr
ai

n
in

g,
 p

le
as

e 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

a 
co

p
y 

to
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 s
ta

ff
 f

o
r 

yo
u

r 
fi

le
.



Th
e 

tr
av

el
 is

 o
ve

r…
..

•
R

ep
o

rt
 t

o
 t

h
e 

R
et

ir
em

en
t 

B
o

ar
d

 a
t 

th
e 

n
ex

t 
m

ee
ti

n
g 

th
e 

p
er

ti
n

en
t 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 o
b

ta
in

ed
 a

t 
th

e 
co

n
fe

re
n

ce
.

•
If

 m
u

lt
ip

le
 B

o
ar

d
 m

em
b

er
s 

at
te

n
d

 a
 c

o
n

fe
re

n
ce

, a
t 

le
as

t 
o

n
e 

o
f 

th
e 

at
te

n
d

in
g 

B
o

ar
d

 m
em

b
er

s 
re

p
o

rt
 o

n
 t

h
e 

ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 

ev
en

t 
o

n
 b

eh
al

f 
o

f 
al

l B
o

ar
d

 m
em

b
er

 a
tt

en
d

ee
s.

Ti
p

s 
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n

g 
th

e 
tr

av
el

 d
em

an
d

…



F
U

L
L

 N
A

M
E

:
B

o
a

rd
 T

ru
s

te
e

 N
a

m
e

C
L

A
IM

 M
O

/Y
R

:
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
2

0

V
E

N
D

O
R

#
Z
B

B
T

N
0
1

P
le

a
s
e
 s

u
b

m
it

 O
N

E
 t

ra
v
e
l 

d
e
m

a
n

d
 p

e
r 

c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e
/t

ri
p

. 
#

 M
il

e
s

#
 M

il
e

s
O

T
H

E
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

D
a

te
F

ro
m

/T
o

P
u

rp
o

s
e

/D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
B

o
a

rd
 M

tg
O

th
e

r
A

ir
fa

re
H

o
te

l
M

e
a

ls
It

e
m

A
m

o
u

n
t

0
2

/0
1

/2
0

C
o

n
co

rd
 to

 O
a

kl
a

n
d

C
A

L
A

P
R

S
 T

ru
st

e
e

s'
 R

o
u

n
d

ta
b

le
3

0
1

5
0

.4
6

2
5

0
.3

0
2

3
.7

5
T

a
x

i t
o

 H
o

te
l

4
5

.0
0

0
2

/0
2

/2
0

O
a

kl
a

n
d

 to
 C

o
n

co
d

B
u

rb
a

n
k,

 C
A

  
  

 
3

0
2

0
.7

5
M

a
id

 T
ip

5
.0

0

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
, 

2
0

2
0

5
.7

8
T

a
x

i t
o

 A
ir

p
o

rt
4

3
.0

0

A
ir

p
o

rt
 P

a
rk

in
g

3
3

.0
0

T
O

T
A

L
S

0
.0

6
0

.0
$

1
5

0
.4

6
$

2
5

0
.3

0
$

5
0

.2
8

$
1

2
6

.0
0

I 
ce

rt
ify

, 
u

n
d

e
r 

p
e

n
a

lty
 o

f p
e

rj
u

ry
, 

th
a

t t
h

e
 a

b
o

v
e

 m
ile

a
g

e
 a

n
d

 e
x

p
e

n
se

s
T

o
ta

l 
M

il
e

s
 @

0
.5

7
5

$
3

4
.5

0

a
re

 tr
u

e
 a

n
d

 c
o

rr
e

ct
 a

n
d

 th
a

t n
o

 p
a

rt
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 p
re

v
io

u
sl

y
 p

a
id

 a
n

d
 th

e
F

O
R

 A
C

O
U

N
T

IN
G

 U
S

E
 O

N
L

Y

e
x

p
e

n
se

s 
lis

te
d

 a
d

h
e

re
 to

 C
C

C
E

R
A

's
 tr

a
v

e
l p

o
lic

y
.

B
O

A
R

D
9

0
4

6
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

B
o

a
rd

 M
tg

 M
il

e
s

M
il

e
a

g
e

 -
 B

o
a

rd
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
s

$
0

.0
0

B
oa

rd
 T

ru
ste

e N
am

e
0

2
/0

3
/2

0
B

O
A

R
D

9
0

1
7

3
4

.5
0

$
  

  
  

  
 

O
th

e
r-

M
il

e
s

M
il

e
a

g
e

 -
 O

th
e

r
$

3
4

.5
0

B
o

a
rd

 M
e

m
b

e
r 

S
ig

n
a

tu
re

D
a

te
T

o
ta

l 
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
 (

E
x

c
l 

M
il

e
a

g
e

)
$

5
7

7
.0

4

B
O

A
R

D
9

0
2

1
$

T
ra

v
e

l
L

e
s

s
 T

ra
v

e
l 

A
d

v
a

n
c

e

  
  

  
  

 _
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
B

O
A

R
D

9
0

2
2

$
H

o
te

l 
&

 L
o

d
g

in
g

T
o

ta
l 

R
e
im

b
u

rs
a
b

le
$

6
1

1
.5

4

P
a

y
m

e
n

t A
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 S
ig

n
a

tu
re

D
a

te
B

O
A

R
D

9
0

1
9

$
R

e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 F
e

e
s

B
O

A
R

D
9

0
2

3
$

M
e

a
ls

, 
ti

p
s

 e
tc

B
O

A
R

D
9

0
2

0
$

T
ra

v
e

l 
A

d
v

A
P

In
iti

a
ls

M
IL

E
A

G
E

 D
IS

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
 D

IS
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

  
  
  
  
  
  
B

O
A

R
D

 M
E

M
B

E
R

 T
R

A
V

E
L

 D
E

M
A

N
D

C
O

N
T

R
A

 C
O

S
T

A
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
S

' 
R

E
T

IR
E

M
E

N
T

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
IO

N

C
C

C
E

R
A

 #

H
o

m
e

 t
o

 A
ir

p
o

rt
 

&
 b

a
ck

 t
o

 H
o

m
e

C
o

n
fe

re
n

ce
 N

a
m

e
C

o
n

fe
re

n
ce

Lo
ca

ti
o

n
C

o
n

fe
re

n
ce

 D
a

te
 (

s)

O
n

ce
 y

o
u

 e
n

te
r 

y
o

u
r 

N
a

m
e

 i
t 

w
il

l a
u

to
m

a
ti

cl
ly

 
p

o
p

u
la

te
 y

o
u

r 
V

e
n

d
o

r
N

u
m

b
e

r

M
il

e
a

g
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 a

lw
a

y
s

b
e

 p
u

t 
u

n
d

e
r 

O
th

e
r

D
o

n
't

fo
rg

e
t 

to
 e

n
te

r 
M

o
n

th
 &

 Y
e

a
r

E
n

te
r 

H
o

te
l 

T
o

ta
l 

a
n

d
 r

e
m

e
m

b
e

r 
to

 
g

e
t 

F
o

li
o

 w
it

h
 a

 0
 

B
a

la
n

ce
 d

u
e

E
a

ch
 m

e
a

l r
e

ce
ip

t 
sh

o
u

ld
 b

e
 e

n
te

re
d

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

ly
.  

  
   

  
  

   
   

   
 

F
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
: D

in
n

e
r 

e
n

tr
e

e
 w

a
s 

p
u

rc
h

a
se

d
 a

t 
th

e
 G

ri
ll

 
C

a
fe

 a
n

d
 a

 b
o

tt
le

 o
f 

w
a

te
r 

a
t 

th
e

 G
if

t 
S

h
o

p
. 

E
v

e
n

 t
h

o
u

g
h

 
it

 w
a

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 m

e
a

l,
 e

a
ch

 r
e

ce
ip

t 
h

a
s 

to
 b

e
 e

n
te

re
d

 
o

n
 a

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

 li
n

e
 a

s 
sh

o
w

n
 a

b
o

v
e

.

A
LW

A
Y

S
 S

U
B

M
IT

 I
T

E
M

IZ
E

D
 R

E
C

E
IP

T
S

R
e

ce
ip

ts
fo

r 
fo

ll
o

w
in

g
 T

ip
s:

   
   

   
   

   
M

a
id

s/
B

e
ll

 H
o

p
s/

P
o

rt
e

rs
/ 

 S
h

u
tl

e
 d

ri
v

e
rs

   
  

  
   

   
 

N
O

T
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D



Q
U

ES
TI

O
N

S?
??



1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520     Phone: (925) 521-3960      Fax: (925) 521-3969     cccera.org 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: February 12, 2020 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer 

Subject: Consider and take possible action to amend the CCCERA Travel Expense 
Reimbursement Policy. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 
The CCCERA Travel Expense Reimbursement Policy was last amended by the Board on 
November 26, 2013. Travel may be necessary at times for the Board and staff to receive 
relevant education and training in order to administer the system as well as to receive the 
required Board education hours.  Reasonable and necessary expenses can be reimbursed by the 
fund for such a purpose. It is important to have a policy which provides guidance for travelers 
for the prudent management of the fund. The enclosed amended draft of the Policy includes 
edits to clarify items, remove outdated information, and provide further guidance on travel 
requirements. 

The key changes include: 

• Section V.C. has been revised so that Board members and CCCERA employees will not be
reimbursed for meals if the meals are provided by the conference.  Exceptions include
medical dietary restrictions or when the traveler must work while the meal is being
served at the conference.

• In section V.D., a brief telephone call home once at destination has been deleted as it is
outdated and has not been used in years.

• In section V.E., “original” has been added to the requirement of substantiating the
expense with the submission of detailed, itemized receipts.  Original itemized receipts,
rather than duplicates, should be included with reimbursement requests.  This is
required in order to ensure compliance with the policy (e.g. to ensure no alcoholic
beverages have been purchased).  It is also required to avoid duplicate reimbursement
requests.

• In section V.E., the once a quarter waiver of reimbursement without a receipt is now
limited to under $75, to comply with IRS guidance on the potential taxability of
reimbursement of items $75 and over without a receipt.

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/12/20Agenda Item#11



CCCERA Board of Retirement 
February 12, 2020 

Page 2 
 

1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520   Phone: (925) 521-3960    Fax: (925) 521-3969   cccera.org 

 

• In section VII., the timeframe for submitting travel demands would change from 
monthly to within 60 days after completing the travel or 30 days within the year-end, 
whichever occurs first. 

 
An amended Travel Expense Reimbursement Policy is enclosed for Board consideration (see 
Attachment A). A redline copy of this policy is also enclosed (see Attachment B). 
 
Recommendation 
Consider and take possible action to amend the CCCERA Travel Expense Reimbursement Policy. 
 



Attachment 

A 



1 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

TRAVEL EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT POLICY 

This document provides Retirement Board policies concerning authorized travel for its employees 

and for members of the Board and recommended procedures for payment of travel expenses. 

The guidelines contained herein apply to travel expenses incurred both within and outside the state 

of California, while on official Retirement Association business to attend and participate in 

meetings, conferences, seminars, training and other events that benefit the Association. 

I. GENERAL AUTHORITY OF THE BOARD.  

The California Constitution charges the Board with sole and exclusive authority and 

responsibility for administration of the Retirement System Trust.  In this capacity, and under 

the specific authority of its governing statutes, the Board must approve the attendance of its 

members and staff as representatives of the Association at conferences and meetings, and the 

reasonable expenditure of funds to accomplish this.  (Calif. Const. Art. XVI, Section 17, Calif. 

Gov. Code Sections 31520, 31580.2) 

A. Authorization for Attendance at Meetings at Retirement Association Expenses. 

Authorization may be granted if the necessary funds are available, if the program includes 

subject matter directly related to retirement issues, and if the Retirement Association will 

benefit from attendance.  Board members attending meetings, seminars, conferences or 

otherwise pursuing their fiduciary education at Retirement Association expense shall report 

pertinent information obtained at these events at the next regular meeting of the Board.  

When Board members attend educational events such as a SACRS conference or 

CALAPRS General Assembly that are typically attended by several Board members, at 

least one of the attending Board members may report on the educational event on behalf of 

all Board attendees.  When possible, Board members should not attend educational 

activities that conflict with regularly scheduled Board meetings. 

B. Authorization for Attendance Without Expense Reimbursement. 

Authorization for attendance without travel expense reimbursement, but on Retirement 

Association time, may be granted when the meeting concerns work in which the Board 

member or employee is engaged, and both the Board member or employee, and the 

Retirement Association will benefit from attendance. 

II. DELEGATION.

The Board has delegated authority to its Chief Executive Officer to approve employee travel. 



 
 

 

 

2 

III. AUTHORIZATION FOR IN-STATE TRAVEL 

 

A. Employees.  All in-state travel by employees shall be requested and approved before the 

trip.  A Trip Authorization Form shall contain sufficient explanation under “Reason for 

Making Trip” so that an evaluation of the request may be made for conformance with 

established policies. 

 

The Chief Executive Officer shall review the request and shall approve or deny the request, 

taking into account the following criteria: 

 

1. Funds are available; 

2. The travel request has priority in relationship to other travel requests; 

3. The number of nights authorized for overnight lodging is held to the period of the 

meeting plus timely travel and availability of public transportation; 

4. The timing of the travel does not interfere with completing critical work items; 

5. The information to be gained and/or contributed is relevant to the responsibilities of 

the employee. 

 

B. Board Members.  All in-state travel by Board members should be requested and approved 

before the trip is made in the same fashion as out-of-state travel (Section IV).   

 

IV. AUTHORIZATION FOR OUT OF STATE TRAVEL 

 

A. All out-of-state travel, including international travel, by Board members and employees 

shall be requested and approved in the same way as for in-state travel.  

 

B. A request from a Board Member shall be submitted to the Chief Executive Officer for 

review and included in the Retirement Board meeting agenda and shall be considered for 

approval by the Board in open meeting.  Sufficient information about the trip shall be provided 

to allow adequate evaluation. 

 

C. The Retirement Board minutes shall reflect approval of the travel for audit purposes. 

 

V. REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 

 

In all cases, expenses will be reimbursed to the extent they are reasonable and necessary.  

Reimbursement requests for expenses that are not deemed to be reasonable and necessary 

may be denied. 

 

A.  Transportation 

 

1. Personal auto mileage will be reimbursed at the prevailing IRS rate.  In no event shall 

personal auto mileage reimbursement exceed the cost of round trip airfare plus 

reasonable expenses associated with air travel. 

2. Air travel will be reimbursed at coach/economy class rate, not to exceed the actual 

amount paid. For commercial flights having a scheduled non-stop flight time of six 



 
 

 

 

3 

hours or more, CCCERA will reimburse the additional cost of coach/economy class 

seats advertised as having additional leg room (e.g, economy plus). Incidentals 

deemed necessary such as checked luggage and early check-in fee will be reimbursed 

by CCCERA. 

3. Public transportation will be reimbursed at actual cost. 

4. If a member of the Board or staff travels by an indirect route for his/her own 

convenience (including when traveling by automobile instead of by available aircraft) 

and incurs additional food and/or lodging expenses, any extra cost shall be borne by the 

traveler and reimbursement for expense shall be based only on such charges as would 

have been incurred by the most direct and usually traveled route and method. 

5.   A rental car may be considered if the use of such is less than or equal    

      to the cost of public transportation, including taxis and shuttles, or if   

      public transportation is clearly inadequate.  

 

B.  Lodging 

 

1. Generally, hotel and motel accommodations are made at the conference site.  

Reimbursement will be made at the lowest rate offered to conference attendees.  

2. If an overnight stay is required, reimbursement will be at the single occupancy, regular 

rate, plus room taxes and related fees. 

3. Itemized lodging receipts are required for reimbursement. 

 

C.  Meals 

 

1. Actual and reasonable expenses for meals will be reimbursed while in travel status, not 

to exceed $100.00 per day. 

2. Tips to a maximum of 20% are reimbursable. 

3. No claims will be reimbursed for alcoholic beverages. 

4. Reimbursement is not provided for meals purchased in lieu of meals included during a 

conference unless: 

• Medical dietary restrictions apply, or 

• It is necessary for the traveler to work during the time the conference is serving 

the meal. 

 

D. Other Expenses 

 

1. Bridge, tolls, parking, porterage, airport transportation, taxi, bus, rental car, tips and 

gratuities in accord with local custom will be reimbursed. 

2. Laundry and pressing costs are not reimbursable unless in travel status for 5 days or 

more. 

3. Room service and in-room amenities are not reimbursable unless they are in lieu of 

expenses which would be reimbursable otherwise (i.e., meals). 

4. Conference/seminar registration fees are reimbursable. 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

4 

E. Receipts 

 

In accordance with Government Code section 53232.3(c), detailed, itemized original 

receipts documenting each expense are required for reimbursement; provided, however, 

that requests for reimbursements under $75 for (i) items such as tolls and porterage, as to 

which official receipts are typically not issued, and (ii) items as to which a receipt was 

lost, but whose price may be independently verified, may, at the discretion of the Chief 

Executive Officer and no more frequently than once per quarter, be documented to 

CCCERA by written request prepared by the Board member or employee who is 

requesting reimbursement.  

 

F. Miscellaneous 

 

Sometimes airfare is cheaper if a Saturday stay is involved.  Cost of meals and lodging for 

extra days in travel status to take advantage of this lower cost fare will be reimbursed if a 

net cost saving can be documented.  Appropriate documentation to support this cost 

saving should be attached to the Travel Demand. 

 

This policy is not intended to imply that the traveler is compelled to stay in travel status 

longer than required, but merely to allow this alternative should the traveler desire. 

 

VI. TRAVEL ADVANCES 

 

The traveler may request a travel advance, in the form of a check payable to the traveler, to 

defray reimbursable expenses of travel that would otherwise be paid out-of-pocket.  A “Travel 

Demand” form should be completed for this purpose.  For staff, the Employee Travel Demand 

form shall be approved by the employee’s supervisor in advance to allow for payment 

processing time. 

 

The amount to be advanced shall be a maximum of $100 and if requested more than that 

amount computed assuming reasonable daily meal and transportation expenses for the area to 

which the traveler is going. 

 

Immediately upon conclusion of travel, any unspent travel advance shall be returned to the 

Association.  Detail of the traveler’s actual expenses shall be provided and reimbursement of 

any expenses greater than the travel advance shall be paid, as part of the normal travel 

reimbursement process. 

 

VII. CLAIMING REIMBURSEMENT 

 

Travel demands should be submitted for review and approval by the Chief Executive Officer or 

designee within 60 days after completing the travel or 30 days after the year-end, whichever 

occurs first.  Extensions to this deadline may be granted upon showing good cause. Airfare 

vouchers, itemized hotel, rental car, taxi, transportation service, van (or other conveyance), 

parking and registration receipts for which reimbursement is requested must be attached to the 



 
 

 

 

5 

travel demand.  Original receipts for other expenses incurred must also be provided in 

accordance with Section V. (E) above. 

 

The Chief Executive Officer will provide a copy of all his or her travel demands to the Board 

Chairman on a quarterly basis. 

 

VIII. NON-REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 

 

In many cases where the traveler’s hotel expenses are placed on the Association’s credit card, 

personal non-reimbursable expenses are included in the hotel bill.  In these cases, non-

reimbursable expenses shall be identified by the traveler and reimbursed to the Association.  

Employees shall reimburse personal non-reimbursable expenses upon their return from travel.  

Board members shall reimburse personal non-reimbursable expenses before the Board Meeting 

following their return from travel. Expenses for non-employee and non-Board member travel 

will not be reimbursed. 

 

IX. REVIEW 

 

 This policy shall be reviewed by the Board at least every (5) years and may be amended at any 

time. 

 

X. HISTORY 

 

This policy was adopted on:  12/12/89 

Amended:  04/09/96, 01/11/00, 12/12/00, 02/12/02, 03/09/05, 11/07/07, 07/14/10, 09/08/10,   

 11/26/13, __/__/20 

 

 



Attachment 

B 



1 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 

EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

TRAVEL EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT POLICY 

APPROVED: 12/12/89 

Amended: 04/09/96 

Amended: 01/11/00 

Amended: 12/12/00 

Amended: 02/12/02 

Amended: 03/09/05 

Amended: 11/07/07 

Amended:     07/14/10 

Amended: 09/08/10 

Amended: 11/26/13 

Amended: 02/12/2020 

This document provides Retirement Board policies concerning authorized travel for its employees 

and for members of the Retirement Board and recommended procedures for payment of travel 

expenses. 

The guidelines contained herein apply to travel expenses incurred both within and outside the state 

of California, while on official Retirement Association business to attend and participate in 

meetings, conferences, seminars, training and other events or field visits that benefit the 

Association. 

I. GENERAL AUTHORITY OF THE BOARD.  

I. The California Constitution charges the Retirement Board with sole and 

exclusive authority and responsibility for administration of the Retirement System Trust.  In 

this capacity, and under the specific authority of its governing statutes, the Retirement Board 

must approve the attendance of its members and staff as representatives of the Association at 

conferences and meetings, and the reasonable expenditure of funds to accomplish this.  (Calif. 

Const. Arte. XVI, Section 17, Calif. Gov. Code Sections 31520, 31580.2) 

A. Authorization for Attendance at Meetings at Retirement Association Expenses. 

Authorization may be granted if the necessary funds are available, if the program includes 

subject matter directly related to retirement issues, and if the Retirement Association will 

benefit from attendance.  Individuals Board members attending meetings, seminars, 

conferences or otherwise pursuing their fiduciary education at Retirement Association 

expense shall report to Retirement Board members and staff pertinent information obtained 

at these events at the next regular meeting of the Board.  When Board members attend 

educational events such as a SACRS conference or CALAPRS General Assembly that are 

typically attended by several Board members, at least one of the attending Board members 

may report on the educational event on behalf of all Board attendees.  When possible, 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Left:  1", Right:  1", Top:  1", Bottom:  1"

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Title, Left, Right:  0", Space After:  12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Tab stops:  0.5", List tab +
Not at  0.81" +  1.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Tab stops:  0.5", Left + Not
at  1" +  1.5"



2 

Board members should not attend educational activities that conflict with regularly 

scheduled Board meetings. 

B. Authorization for Attendance Without Expense Reimbursement. 

Authorization for attendance without travel expense reimbursement, but on Retirement 

Association time, may be granted when the meeting concerns work in which the Board 

member or employee is engaged, and both the Board member or employee, and the 

Retirement Association will benefit from attendance. 

II. DELEGATIONAUTHORITY.

The Board of Retirement has delegated authority to its Chief Executive Officer to approve 

employee travel.  The Chief Executive Officer shall regularly report on staff travel and on their 

attainment of professional certifications in the pension and benefits industry. 

II. 

III. AUTHORIZATION FOR IN-STATE TRAVEL

A. Employees.  All in-state travel by employees shall be requested and approved before the 

trip.  A request Trip Authorization Fform shall contain sufficient explanation under 

“Reason for Mmaking Trip” so that an evaluation of the request may be made for 

conformance with established policies. 

A. 

The Chief Executive Officer shall review the request and shall approve or deny the request, 

taking into account the following criteria: 

1. Funds are available;

2. The travel request has priority in relationship to other travel requests;

3. A minimum number of persons from the retirement association will be

authorized to attend the same event; 

3. The number of nights authorized for overnight lodging is held to the period of the

meeting plus timely travel and availability of public transportation;

4. The timing of the travel does not interfere with completing critical work items;

5. The information to be gained and/or contributed is relevant to the responsibilities of

the employee.

B. Board Members.  All in-state travel by Board members should be requested and approved 

before the trip is made in the same fashion as out-of-state travel (Section IV).  If prior 

Commented [WD1]:  

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  1.25", Tab stops:  0.5", Left
+  0.88", Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Tab stops:  0.5", Left + 
0.56", Left + Not at  1" +  1.5"

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Font color:
Red, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Commented [WD2]: Removed “of Retirement” to be consistent 

with edits earlier in the policy document. 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25",  No bullets or numbering,
Tab stops:  0.25", Left + Not at  1.75"

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.25", Tab stops: 
0.25", List tab + Not at  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at:  0.38" + Indent at:  0.63", Tab stops:  0.5", Left
+  0.69", Left

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Tab stops:  0.56", Left + Not
at  1.25"

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.25", Tab stops:  0.5", Left

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.75", Tab stops:  1.25", Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75", Tab stops:  0.5", Left +  1",
List tab + Not at  1.5"

Formatted: Tab stops:  0.5", Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75", Tab stops:  0.5", Left +  1",
List tab + Not at  1.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75", Tab stops:  0.5", Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75", Tab stops:  0.5", Left + Not
at  1.5"

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.25", Tab stops:  0.5", Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.31", Hanging:  0.19", Numbered
+ Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.38" + Indent at:  0.63", Tab
stops:  0.5", Left + Not at  1" +  1.75" +  3.25"

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt



3 

approval is not requested, and the claim for reimbursement is in excess of $200, the Chief 

Executive Officer shall place the request in the agenda for Board action at its next regular 

meeting.  If prior approval is not requested and the claim for reimbursement is $200 or 

lower, the Chief Executive Officer shall review and approve the claim in the same manner 

as all other travel reimbursement demands. 

IV. IV. AUTHORIZATION FOR OUT OF STATE TRAVEL 

A. All out-of-state travel, including international travel, by Board members and employees by 

employees shall be requested and approved in the same way as for in-state travel. (Section 

III.A).

B. A request from a Board Member shall be submitted to the Chief Executive Officer for 

review and  included in the  Retirement Board meeting agenda and approved shall be 

considered for approval by the Board in open meeting.  Sufficient information about the reason 

for the trip shall be provided to allow adequate evaluation. 

C. The Retirement Board minutes shall reflect approval of the travel for audit purposes. 

V. V. REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 

In all cases, the most reasonable and cost effective mode of travel should be 

chosen.expenses will be reimbursed to the extent they are reasonable and necessary.  

Reimbursement requests for expenses that are not deemed to be reasonable and necessary 

may be denied. 

A.  Transportation 

1. In all cases, the most reasonable and cost effective 

mode of travel should be chosen. 

2.1. Personal auto miileage will be reimbursed at the prevailing IRS rate., except that 

personal auto mileage for the Chief Executive Officer will be reimbursed at the rate 

paid to County department heads.  In no event shall personal auto mileage 

reimbursement exceed the cost of round trip airfare plus reasonable expenses associated 

with air travel. 

3.2. Air travel will be reimbursed at coach/economy class rate, not to exceed the actual 

amount paid. For commercial flights having a scheduled non-stop flight time of six 

hours or more, CCCERA will reimburse the additional cost of coach/economy class 

seats advertised as having additional leg room (e.g, economy plus). Incidentals 

deemed necessary such as checked luggage and early check-in fee will be reimbursed 

by CCCERA. 

4.3. Public transportation will be reimbursed at actual cost. 

54. If a member of the Board or staff travels by an indirect route for his/her own

convenience (including when traveling by automobile instead of by available air craft) 

and incurs additional food and/or lodging expenses, any extra cost shall be borne by the 

Formatted: Heading 2, Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.25",
Right:  0", Tab stops:  0.25", List tab + Not at  1" +  1.75" + 
3.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", First line:  0", Tab stops: 
0.5", List tab +  0.75", Left + Not at  1" +  1.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Tab stops:  0.5", List tab

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", First line:  0", Tab stops: 
0.5", List tab + Not at  1.31"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Tab stops:  0.5", List tab

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", First line:  0", Tab stops: 
0.5", List tab + Not at  1.25" +  1.31"

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, No underline

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering, Tab stops:  0.25", Left
+ Not at  1.75"

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, No underline

Formatted: Heading 2, Indent: Left:  0.25", Right:  0",  No
bullets or numbering, Tab stops:  0.94", Left + Not at  3.25"

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.88"

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.88", Tab stops:  0.44", List
tab + Not at  1.13"

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.13", Tab stops:  0.75", Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.56", Tab stops:  0.75", Left +
Not at  1.5" +  3.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.56", Hanging:  0.19", Tab stops:
Not at  1.56"



4 

traveler and reimbursement for expense shall be based only on such charges as would 

have been incurred by the most direct and usually traveled route and method. 

65. A rental car may be considered if the use of such 

is less than or equal 

      to the cost of public transportation, including taxis and shuttles, or if 

      public transportation is clearly inadequate.  

B.  Lodging 

1. Generally, hotel and motel accommodations are made at the conference site.

Reimbursement will be made at the lowest rate offered to conference attendees.

2. If an overnight stay is required, reimbursement will be at the single occupancy, regular

rate, plus room taxes and related fees.

3. Itemized lodging receipts are required for reimbursement.

C.  Meals 

C. 
1. Actual and reasonable expenses for meals will be reimbursed while in travel status, not

to exceed $100.00 per day, excluding taxes, tips and service charges.

2. Tips to a maximum of 20% are reimbursable.

3. No claims will be reimbursed for alcoholic beverages.

4. It is expected that CCCERA employees will not seek Rreimbursement is not provided

for meals purchased in lieu of meals provided included during by a conference  unless:

• Mmedical dietary restrictions apply, or, subject to any existing MOUs

applicable to a particular employee 

• .It is necessary for the traveler to work during the time the conference is serving

the meal.

D. Other Expenses 

1. Bridge, tolls, parking, porterage, airport transportation, taxi, bus, rental car, tips and

gratuities in accord with local custom will be reimbursed.

2. Personal telephone calls will not be reimbursed except for a brief call home upon

arrival at the meeting location.  Up to $20 will be reimbursed for this first call home.  

Alternatively, a $10 phone card will be made available for overnight travel ??. 

3.2. Laundry , valet and pressing costs are not reimbursable unless in travel status for 5 

days or more. 

4.3. Room service and in-room amenities are not reimbursable unless they are in lieu of 

expenses which would be reimbursable otherwise (i.ei.e., .meals). 

4. Conference/seminar registration fees are reimbursable.

E. Receipts 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", First line:  0", Tab stops: 
0.75", Left +  0.81", Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.31", Hanging:  0.19", Tab stops:
 0.5", List tab + Not at  1.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.94", Tab stops:  0.5", List
tab + Not at  1.25"

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, No underline

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.25",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging:  0.31", Tab stops: 
0.81", List tab + Not at  1.5"

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  1", Tab stops:  0.81", List tab
+ Not at  1.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging:  0.31", Tab stops: 
0.81", List tab

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  1", Tab stops:  0.81", List tab
+  1.25", Left + Not at  1.75"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned
at:  1.75" + Indent at:  2", Tab stops:  0.81", List tab + 
1.25", Left + Not at  1.75" +  3.25"

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.94", Tab stops:  0.56", List
tab + Not at  1.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging:  0.31", Tab stops: 
0.81", Left + Not at  1.5" +  1.75"

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.88",  No bullets or numbering,
Tab stops:  0.81", Left + Not at  1.75"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.94", Tab stops:  0.56", List
tab + Not at  1.25"

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.94"



5 

In accordance with Government Code section 53232.3(c), detailed, itemized original 

receipts documenting each expense are required for reimbursement; provided, however, 

that requests for reimbursements under $75 for (i) items such as personal auto 

mileage,tolls taxis and porterage, as to which official receipts are typically not issued, and 

(ii) items as to which a receipt was lost, but whose price may be independently verified, 

may, at the discretion of the Chief Executive Officer and no more frequently than once per 

quarter, be documented to CCCERA by written request prepared by the Board member or 

employee who is requesting reimbursement.  

F. Miscellaneous 

Sometimes airfare is cheaper if a Saturday stay is involved.  Cost of meals and lodging for 

extra days in travel status to take advantage of this lower cost fare will be reimbursed if a 

net cost saving can be documented.  Appropriate documentation to support this cost 

saving should be attached to the Travel Demand. 

This policy is not intended to imply that the traveler is compelled to stay in travel status 

longer than required, but merely to allow this alternative should the traveler desire. 

VI. TRAVEL ADVANCES

The traveler may request an advance of casha travel advance, in the form of a check payable to

the traveler, to defray reimbursable expenses of travel that would otherwise be paid out-of-

pocket.  A “Travel AdvanceDemand” form should be completed for this purpose.  For

Retirement Office staff, the Employee Ttravel Demand form advance shall be approved by the

employee’s supervisor in advance to allow for payment processing time.

The amount of cash to be advanced shall be a maximum of $100 and if requested more than

that amount computed assuming reasonable daily meal and transportation expenses for the area

to which the traveler is going.

Immediately upon conclusion of travel, any unspent travel advance shall be returned to the

Association.  Detail of the traveler’s actual expenses shall be provided and reimbursement of

any expenses greater than the travel advance shall be paid, as part of the normal travel -

reimbursement process.

VII.  CLAIMING REIMBURSEMENT 

A credit card will be maintained by the Association for reservations made for approved travel. 

The traveler may either pay all expenses and request reimbursement or may request 

that all reimbursable expenses be charged directly to the Association credit card. 

Travel demands should be submitted for review and approval by the Chief Executive Officer or 

designee monthly within 60 days after completing the travel or 30 days after the year-end, 

whichever occurs first.  Extensions to this deadline may be granted upon showing good 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.56"

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.88", Tab stops:  0.56", List
tab + Not at  1.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.56", Tab stops:  1", Left + 
1.69", Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.25", First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.56"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25"

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25"

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Tab stops:  1.69", Left +
Not at  1.75"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.25", Right:  0"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25"



6 

causefor review and approval by the Chief Executive Officer.  Airfare vouchers, itemized 

hotel, rental car, taxi, transportation service, van (or other conveyance), parking and 

registration receipts for which reimbursement is requested must be attached to the travel 

demand.  Original Rreceipts for other expenses incurred must also be provided in accordance 

with Section V. (E) above. 

The Chief Executive Officer will provide a copy of all his or her travel demands to the Board 

Chairman on a quarterly basis. 

VIII. NON-REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 

In many cases where the traveler’s hotel expenses are placed on the Association’s credit card, 

personal non-reimbursable expenses are included in the hotel bill.  In these cases, non-

reimbursable expenses shall be identified by the traveler and reimbursed to the Association.  

Employees shall reimburse personal non-reimbursable expenses upon their return from travel.  

Board members shall reimburse personal non-reimbursable expenses before the Board Meeting 

following their return from travel. Expenses for non-employee and non-Board member travel 

will not be reimbursed. 

IX. REVIEW

This policy shall be reviewed by the Board at least every (5) years and may be amended at any 

time. 

X. HISTORY 

This policy was adopted onApproved:  12/12/89 

Amended:  04/09/96, 

Amended:  01/11/00, 

Amended:  12/12/00, 

Amended:  02/12/02, 

Amended:  03/09/05, 

Amended:  11/07/07, 

Amended:  07/14/10, 

Amended:  09/08/10, 

Amended:  11/26/13,  

Amended:  __02/12__/20 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  -0.06", Hanging:  0.31"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  -0.06", Hanging:  0.31"

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, No underline

Formatted: Indent: Left:  -0.25"

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  -0.06", Hanging:  0.31"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Hanging:  0.06", Tab stops:
 0.5", Left + Not at  1.75"

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Hanging:  0.06", Tab stops:
 1", Left + Not at  1.75"

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, No underline

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt



1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520     Phone: (925) 521-3960      Fax: (925) 521-3969     cccera.org 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: February 12, 2020 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Karen Levy, General Counsel  

Subject: Consider and take possible action to amend CCCERA’s Records Retention Policy 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 
The Board of Retirement adopted a Records Retention Policy on May 6, 2009 to establish 
retention periods and record maintenance processes for CCCERA records. 

CCCERA staff has recently completed a review of this policy.  Enclosed, for the Board’s 
consideration, is an amended Records Retention Policy that contains non-substantive changes. 
(See Attachment A.)  A redline reflecting all suggested changes is enclosed as Attachment B.    

Recommendation 
Consider and take possible action to amend CCCERA’s Records Retention Policy. 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/12/20Agenda Item#12



Attachment 

A 



1 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

RECORDS RETENTION POLICY 

PURPOSE 

The Board of Retirement (“Board”) of the Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement 

Association (“CCCERA”) adopts this policy to establish guidelines and procedures for the 

retention and disposition of the records of CCCERA in accordance with their administrative, 

legal, fiscal and historical value.  

The Board and all CCCERA employees are required to comply with the policies and procedures 

set forth in this document. 

AUTHORITY 

The County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 (“CERL”) provides: “The board may establish 

efficient records management procedures, which may include, but need not be limited to, 

maintenance and, when determined by the board to be necessary, disposal of records in its 

jurisdiction.” Govt. Code section 31537. 

Additionally, the California State Records Management Act (Government Code Section 14740) 

establishes procedures for maintaining and discarding public records, but does not apply to local 

government, county or city government agencies.  To address this gap, the 1999 legislature 

added Section 12236 to the Government Code, which directs the Secretary of State to develop a 

Local Government Records Program to establish guidelines for local government record 

retention.  CCCERA has relied on these guidelines where applicable in developing this Records 

Retention Policy.     

POLICY 

This policy establishes retention period and record maintenance processes for all CCCERA 

records, as set forth below.   

1. The record retention schedule will be administratively reviewed and updated as

necessary.  Changes to the retention policy require Board action.

2. The minimum retention period of a record must be consistent with applicable laws,

orders, rules or regulations.  When no such criteria exist a reasonable retention period

will be established based on CCCERA’s needs and the usefulness of the information.

3. Once records have fulfilled their administrative, fiscal, or legal function they will be

disposed of as soon as practical in accordance with the Records Retention Schedule

(“Retention Schedule”, Exhibit A), unless they have enduring historical value.

4. Board action is not required for the destruction of documents in accordance with the

Records Retention Schedule.



 
 

2 

 
 

5. Exceptions to the published retention policy may be made by the appropriate Manager in 

consultation with the Chief Executive Officer.  Exceptions should weigh the need for 

retaining the record against the cost to store and retrieve the record. 

6. Retained information must be stored in a manner designed to ensure its accessibility, 

integrity, confidentiality, authenticity, and legibility.  

7. Preliminary drafts, notes, and interagency or intra-agency correspondence may be 

destroyed if they are no longer needed and there is no legal or policy requirement that 

they be retained. 

8. Copies or duplicates of Original Records may be maintained by CCCERA employees in 

their own offices or elsewhere for convenient reference or other purposes.  Such copies 

may be in the same or different format or medium as the Original Record.  Copies of an 

Original Record may be kept no longer than the retention period set forth in the Records 

Retention Schedule, and may be destroyed at any time prior to the expiration of the 

original record. 

9. A duplicate record can become a "new" record and become subject to the records 

retention policy when annotations of substantive nature are made to a duplicate record 

giving it added value as a separate record. 

10. Imaged files or other electronic reproduction of records shall be deemed to be an 

“original” record of the “paper” record, and the “paper” records may be destroyed, upon a 

determination by the Chief Executive Officer that: 

a) The records were electronically imaged or recorded on a medium that is a trusted 

system and that does not permit additions, deletions, or changes to the original 

document; 

b) The device used to reproduce the record, paper, or document on the medium is 

one which accurately and legibly reproduces the original thereof in all details and 

that does not permit additions, deletions, or changes to the original document 

images; 

c) The imaged or reproduced records are used by CCCERA in the ordinary conduct 

of its business in lieu of the “paper” records, and made as accessible for pubic 

reference as the “paper” records were; 

d) A true copy of archival quality of the reproduction medium shall be kept in a safe 

and separate place for security purposes; and 



3 

e) No pages of any record shall be destroyed if any page cannot be reproduced with

full legibility.  Every unreproducible page shall be permanently preserved in a

manner that will afford easy reference.1

11. Non-records may be disposed of at any time.  However, if a non-record is retained as an

integral part of a file or in conjunction with Original Records, then it will be retained in

accordance with the appropriate retention schedule.

12. Electronic communications, including e-mail, are considered transitory in nature, and are

not customarily kept or retained by CCCERA as the primary means for preserving

information for future reference.  E-mail may be periodically or routinely purged from

the system without any necessary action by the sender or the recipient of the

communication. In addition, employees are encouraged to delete messages daily,

immediately after reading, replying, or taking other action concerning them.  Exception -

If the content of an e-mail message is necessary for, or convenient to, the conduct of

CCCERA business and was made for the purpose of preserving its informational content,

employees are required to store the e-mail in the relevant hard copy or electronic file, to

be kept in accordance with the Records Retention Schedule.

RESPONSIBILITIES 

Departments 

Employees in each of CCCERA’s departments are directly responsible for the 

management of that department’s records, documents, files, data, and other information 

pertaining to CCCERA’s official business.  To fulfill this responsibility, the managers of each 

department must: 

1. Ensure that each person within the department implements the Records Retention Policy.

2. Conduct one or more Records Purge Days per year.

3. Dispose of all expired records, as required by the Records Retention Schedule.

4. Work with CCCERA General Counsel to periodically update the Records Retention

Schedule.

5. Prevent the disposal of records or information following notification by CCCERA

General Counsel that disposal must be suspended for litigation or other reasons.

1 See e.g. Government Code sections 26205 and 26205.5. 



 
 

4 

 
 

Administration Services 

In addition to responsibilities set forth above, the Human Resources/Administration 

Manager (or others as designated by the Chief Executive Officer) is responsible for the 

following: 

1. Assisting with the development, maintenance and periodic review of the records retention 

program. The program will consist of this Policy, the Records Retention Schedule and the 

records inventory. 

2. Coordinating the use of and offsite storage facilities for the storage and retrieval of 

records.   

3. Maintaining a master inventory of records stored in off-site locations. 

CCCERA General Counsel 

CCCERA General Counsel is responsible for the following: 

1. Assisting with the development, maintenance and periodic review of the Records 

Retention Schedule. 

2. Advising departments and employees, as appropriate, of actual or potential litigation, 

government investigations, or other circumstances that may affect records retention or 

disposal actions.  For example, pre-trial discovery proceedings may prohibit destruction 

of all relevant records - including non-records, or records that should have been destroyed 

previously in accordance with the Records Retention Schedule. 

3. Issuing Disposal Suspensions that formally suspend records disposal, specifying the types 

of records to which these suspensions relate, and removing these suspensions when 

appropriate.  A Disposal Suspension means, among other reasons, that the information 

contained in the records is or may be subject to production under a subpoena or document 

discovery order and that disposal under authority of the Records Retention Schedule is 

not authorized. 

4. Providing legal advice to all departments concerning all matters related to the legal 

aspects of the Records Retention Policy and Schedule. 



 
 

5 

 
 

PROCEDURES 

A. On-Site Storage 

For the on-site storage time period specified in the Retention Schedule, records should be 

retained under the control of the Human Resources/Administratoin Manager (or others as 

designated by the Chief Executive Officer). 

B. Off-Site Storage 

For records to be stored off-site according to the record retention policy, the Human 

Resources/Administration Manager (or others as designated by the Chief Executive Officer) 

should prepare them for off-site storage. The records should be inventoried, boxed and clearly 

labeled, including a final disposal date or “retain indefinitely” designation.  The Human 

Resources/Administration Manager will be responsible for coordinating delivery to the off-site 

storage facility and will maintain a detailed and current inventory of all records stored off-site. 

C. Retrieval from Off-Site Storage 

To request a record from offsite storage, submit a request form to the Human 

Resources/Administration Manager (or designee).  The request form must include the 

corresponding box number. 

D. Destruction / Disposal of Off-Site Documents 

The Human Resources/Administration Manager (or designee) will designate at least one day 

each year for the destruction and disposal of off-site records that have expired and will provide 

the appropriate Manager with a comprehensive list of documents scheduled to be destroyed.  

Managers should review the list and provide notice to the Human Resources/Administration 

Manager (or designee) the records that are ready for destruction and disposal and the records 

whose retention date should be extended or made permanent. For records with an extended 

destruction date the notice must include a justification for the change and a new “dispose of” 

date or permanent retention designation. 

E. Disposal of on-site Documents 

At least once per year, each department must dispose of expired on-site records. The department 

manager will coordinate the effort.  

VI.  DEFINITIONS 

Administrative Value - Records created to help accomplish the day-to-day functions of all 

offices, and that are needed only as long as they assist the organization in performing current or 

future work. 

Appraisal - The process of determining the need to retain or dispose of records. 



 
 

6 

 
 

Convenience File - Extra copies of records, personal papers, or publications maintained for ease 

of access and reference. Also known as a personal file. 

Copy - A reproduction of the contents of an original document prepared simultaneously or 

separately.  

Correspondence - Letters, postcards, memoranda, notes, telecommunications, e-mails, and any 

other form of addressed, written communications sent or received. 

Current records - A record that is in force even though there is no activity or ongoing process 

directly related to it. Policies, procedures, standards, guidelines and organizational charts (the 

record copy or original with the background material) would be "current" until revised, 

superseded or rescinded. 

Discovery – The pretrial disclosure of pertinent facts or documents by one or both parties to a 

civil or criminal action or proceeding. Nothing requested during discovery may be destroyed – 

even non-records and records that should have been destroyed earlier.  Discovery effectively 

freezes selected holdings until released by Counsel. 

Disposal - Physical movement of records for destruction or recycling, or for transfer to a storage 

facility. 

Disposition - The actions taken with regard to records following their appraisal. The term 

includes but is not synonymous with disposal. 

Document - Recorded information regardless of the medium or physical characteristics.  

Frequently used interchangeably with record. See also RECORDS. 

Electronic records - Those records in a form that only a computer can process and store.  

Databases and other data compilations that are used for multiple purposes are records.  Computer 

back-up tapes and other duplicate computer files are non-records. Electronic mail, voice mail and 

word processing files are non-records when destroyed or, for word-processing files, when they 

are superseded by more recent versions or when they are printed. The final printed outputs are 

records. When computer information is characterized as a record material, it must be retained 

according to CCCERA records retention schedule. 

Expired Records – On or off-site records whose retention period has passed. 

Fiscal Value - Fiscal records pertain to the financial transactions of the agency, such as budgets, 

ledgers, allotments, payrolls and vouchers. After some records have served a basic administrative 

function, they may still have sufficient fiscal value to justify additional retention. 

Historical Records – Records that document the history and development of an agency or 

contain data that can be useful for research. 

Historical Value – The determination by appraisal that historical records are worthy of 

permanent preservation. 



 
 

7 

 
 

Legal Value - Records with legal value contain evidence of legally enforceable rights or 

obligations of the agency. Examples are records that provide the basis for action, such as agency 

decisions and legal opinions; fiscal documents representing agreements, such as leases, titles and 

contracts; and records of action in particular cases, such as claim papers and legal dockets. 

Non-Records - Material not usually included within the definition of records, such as unofficial 

copies of documents kept only for convenience or reference, working papers, appointment logs, 

stocks of publications, requests for printed material after the requests have been filled, 

transmittal letters and acknowledgments that do not contribute any information to the material 

transmitted, shorthand notes and dictating media that have been transcribed and miscellaneous 

notices of agency affairs, meetings, holidays and the like.  Also, documents such as rough notes, 

calculations or drafts used in the preparation or analysis of other documents. 

Permanent Records – Records that are required in perpetuity, usually identified by statute or 

other written guidance. 

Public Records - Any information relating to the conduct of the public's business prepared, 

owned, used, or retained by any state or local agency regardless of physical form or 

characteristics. 

Records - All papers, maps, exhibits, magnetic or paper tapes, photographic films and prints, 

electronic documents and other documents produced, received, owned or used by CCCERA, 

regardless of physical form or characteristics. Supplies of publications and printed blank forms 

are not defined as records. 

Records Management – Record creation, storage and destruction. 

Records Retention Schedule – A document governing, on a continuing basis, the mandatory 

disposition of the records of an organization or agency. It lists all records produced or maintained 

by an organization and the actions taken with regard to those records. A retention schedule is an 

organization’s legal authority to receive, create, retain, and dispose of official public records. It 

assists the organization by documenting which records require office or temporary storage, have 

historic or research value, or should be destroyed because they no longer have administrative, 

fiscal, or legal value. 

Retention Period – The length of time a record must be retained to fulfill its administrative, 

fiscal and/or legal function. 

VII.  APPENDIX 

Exhibit A – Retention Schedule 

VIII. HISTORY 

Adopted: May 6, 2009 

Amended: ____, 2020.  



Records Retention Schedule   1 
 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

EXHIBIT A – RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 

Adopted 05/06/2009 

Revised 01/27/2020 

 

LEGEND: 
AU: Audit         CU: Current       PERM: Permanent     CL: Closed/Completed     EOE: End of Employment 

                    
RETENTION 

PERIOD  
(In Years) 

PRIOR 
BOARD 
ACTION 

 

   

 DESCRIPTION REFERENCE / REMARKS 

     

 Accounting    

ACC-1 Accounting Cash Reconciliation 
Worksheet 

AU+7  G.C. § 31537 

ACC-2 Accounts Payable AU+7  G.C. § 31537 

ACC-3 Administrative Expense Records AU+7  G.C. § 31537 

ACC-4 Period End Audit Records AU+7  G.C. § 31537; OMB A-133 
recommends 3yrs for 
certain audit records 

ACC-5 System Trial Balances & General Ledgers PERM 11/4/97 G.C. § 31537 

ACC-6 Bank Statements/Reports/Redeemed 
checks – operating and retirement 
payroll accts 

CL+7  G.C. § 31537; 7 yrs after all 
benefit obligations 
regarding the participant or 
alternate payee have been 
satisfied 

ACC-8 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report PERM  G.C. § 31537 

ACC-10 Custodian Bank Investment Reports, 
Statements 

7 1/13/98 G.C. § 31537 

ACC-14 Investment (Real Estate, Alternative) 
reports/spreadsheets/worksheets dev. 
By Acctg. 

7  G.C. § 31537 

ACC-15 Investment Capital Calls and Transfer 
Letters 

7  G.C. § 31537 

ACC-16 Investment Monthly Financial Reports 7 1/11/94 G.C. § 31537 

ACC-17 Prepayment Agreements L+4  G.C. § 31537  

ACC-18 State Controllers Reports 7 11/4/97 G.C. § 31537 

ACC-22 Final Operating Budgets 7  G.C. § 31537 

ACC-23 Travel Expense Records 1 3/12/1996 G.C. § 31537 

     

 Administration    

ADM-1 Actuarial Experience Study PERM  G.C. § 31537 

ADM-2 Actuarial Valuations PERM  G.C. § 31537 

ADM-3 Board Agendas and Packets PERM  G.C. § 31537 

ADM-4 Board Elections PERM  G.C. § 31537 

ADM-5 Board Member Files PERM  G.C. § 31537 

ADM-6 Board Minutes PERM  G.C. § 31537 



Records Retention Schedule   2 
 

ADM-9 Contracts L + 4  G.C. § 31537; Life of 
Contract + 4 yrs after 
expiration; contracts include 
the RFPs/RFIs/RFQs and 
responses thereto by the 
chosen party. 

ADM-10 Terminated Employer Records, Files 
(Incl. Corr.) 

PERM  G.C. § 31537 

ADM-11 Establishment of Retirement System PERM  G.C. § 31537 

ADM-14 Grand Jury Documents related to 
CCCERA 

PERM  G.C. § 31537 

ADM-15 Historical Files System Administration PERM  G.C. § 31537 

ADM-16 Insurance Policies L + 5  G.C. § 31537; Contracts 
Statute of Limitations is 4 
years; C.C.P. 337 

ADM-17 Internal Revenue Code Qualification PERM  G.C. § 31537 

ADM-18 CCCERA MOUs and Employee Contracts PERM  G.C. § 31537 

ADM-20 Pension Obligation Bonds PERM  C.C.P. 337.5; G.C. § 31537 

ADM-25 Personnel Records (active) EOE + 7  Title VII of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, including the 
Pregnancy Discrimination 
Act (Title VII), 42 U.S.C. § 
2000e et seq., FEHA 
§7287.0, ADA 29 C.F.R. § 
1602.14., ADEA 29 C.F.R. § 
1627.3(b). 

ADM-26 Board Policies, Procedures, Guidelines PERM  G.C. § 31537 

ADM-27 Public Records Requests and Responses 7  G.C. § 31537 

ADM-28 Recruitment Files, Job Applications, 
Resumes 

2  Title Vll, FEHA, ADA, ADEA 

ADM-29 Requests For Proposals, Requests For 
Interest, requests for quotation 
(RFPs/RFIs/RFQs) 

L + 4  G.C. § 31537 

ADM-30 RFPs/RFIs/RFQs Responses of parties 
that are not awarded a contract 

3  G.C. § 31537; retention of 
responses to 
RFPs/RFIs/RFQs of chosen 
parties is under “contracts” 
above 

ADM-31 Participating Employer Files PERM  G.C. § 31537 

ADM-33 Trip Authorization CU+1  G.C. § 31537 

     

 Member Services    

MEM-5 Differentials PERM  G.C. § 31537 

MEM-12 Member & Emplr Contribution Reports PERM  G.C. § 31537 

MEM-19 Year End Statements 3  G.C. § 31537 

MEM-20 Terminated Members 9 6/9/1998 G.C. § 31537; min 7yrs after 
all benefit obligations 
regarding the participant or 
alternate payee have been 
satisfied 



Records Retention Schedule   3 
 

 Retirement Services/Benefits    

BEN-1 1099Rs 7 1/10/98 26 U.S.C. § 6501;  
G.C. § 31537 

BEN-3 Active Deceased Member 7 9/3/94 G.C. § 31537; at minimum 
must be retained 7 yrs after 
all benefit obligations 
regarding a participant or 
beneficiary have been 
satisfied 

BEN-6 Disability Medical Records 7 1/11/94 Keep 7 yrs from final action 

BEN-7 Early Retirement Incentives PERM  G.C. § 31537 

BEN-9 Member Files (Including Member Corr.) PERM  G.C. § 31537; at minimum 
must be retained 7yrs after 
all benefit obligations 
regarding a participant or 
beneficiary have been 
satisfied 

BEN-16 Microfiche PERM 9/13/94 G.C. § 31537 

BEN-18 Tier III Implementation PERM  G.C. § 31537 

     

 Information Technologies    

IT-1 Computer Backup Media CU+2  G.C. § 31537 

IT-2 Computer Hardware Warranties CU  G.C. § 31537 

IT-3 Computer Software Licenses CU  G.C. § 31537 

     

 Investments    

INV-1 Investment Consultant quarterly Reports PERM  G.C. § 31537 

INV-2 Investment Managers Quarterly Reports L+2  G.C. § 31537 

INV-3 Investment Managers Search (finalists 
only) 

1  G.C. § 31537 

INV-4 Investment Managers Presentations 
(after hired) 

L+2  G.C. § 31537 

     

 Legal    

LEG-1 County Employees Retirement Law of 
1937 Books 

CU  G.C. § 31537; 20 CFR 
1627.3(b)(2) 

LEG-2 Legal Opinions PERM  G.C. § 31537 

LEG-3 Legislation CU  G.C. § 31537 

LEG-4 Litigation 20  G.C. § 31537; C.C.P. 
583.320(a); if disposition 
effects member benefits 
retain at minimum 7 yrs 
after all benefit obligations 
regarding a participant or 
beneficiary have been 
satisfied 

LEG-5 Resolutions, Regulations, Ordinances PERM  G.C. § 31537; 29 CFR 
1627.3(b)(2) 

LEG-6 Subpoenas 1  G.C. § 31537 

 



Attachment 

B 



1 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

RECORDS RETENTION POLICY 

(Adopted 5/6/2009) 

PURPOSE 

The Board of Retirement (“Board”) of the Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement 

Association (“CCCERA”) adopts this policy to establish guidelines and procedures for the 

retention and disposition of the records of CCCERA in accordance with their administrative, 

legal, fiscal and historical value.  

The Board and all CCCERA employees are required to comply with the policies and procedures 

set forth in this document. 

AUTHORITY 

The County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 (“CERL”) provides:  “The board may establish 

efficient records management procedures, which may include, but need not be limited to, 

maintenance and, when determined by the board to be necessary, disposal of records in its 

jurisdiction.” Govt. Code section 31537. 

Additionally, the California State Records Management Act (Government Code Section 14740) 

establishes procedures for maintaining and discarding public records, but does not apply to local 

government, county or city government agencies.  To address this gap, the 1999 legislature 

added Section 12236 to the Government Code, which directs the Secretary of State to develop a 

Local Government Records Program to establish guidelines for local government record 

retention.  CCCERA has relied on these guidelines where applicable in developing this Records 

Retention Policy.    

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman



 
 

2 

 
 

 

POLICY 

This policy establishes retention period and record maintenance processes for all CCCERA 

records, as set forth below.   

1. The record retention schedule will be administratively reviewed and updated as 

necessary.  Changes to the retention policy require Board action. 

2. The minimum retention period of a record must be consistent with applicable laws, 

orders, rules or regulations.  When no such criteria exist a reasonable retention period 

will be established based on CCCERA’s needs and the usefulness of the information. 

3. Once records have fulfilled their administrative, fiscal, or legal function they will be 

disposed of as soon as practical in accordance with the Records Retention Schedule 

(“Retention Schedule”, Exhibit A), unless they have enduring historical value. 

4. Board action is not required for the destruction of documents in accordance with the 

Records Retention Schedule. 

5. Exceptions to the published retention policy may be made by the appropriate Manager in 

consultation with the Chief Executive Officer.  Exceptions should weigh the need for 

retaining the record against the cost to store and retrieve the record. 

6. Retained information must be stored in a manner designed to ensure its accessibility, 

integrity, confidentiality, authenticity, and legibility.  

7. Preliminary drafts, notes, and interagency or intra-agency correspondence may be 

destroyed if they are no longer needed and there is no legal or policy requirement that 

they be retained. 

8. Copies or duplicates of Original Records may be maintained by CCCERA employees in 

their own offices or elsewhere for convenient reference or other purposes.  Such copies 

may be in the same or different format or medium as the Original Record.  Copies of an 

Original Record may be kept no longer than the retention period set forth in the Records 

Retention Schedule,  and may be destroyed at any time prior to the expiration of the 

original record. 

9. A duplicate record can become a "new" record and become subject to the records 

retention policy when annotations of substantive nature are made to a duplicate record 

giving it added value as a separate record. 

10. Imaged files or other electronic reproduction of records shall be deemed to be an 

“original” record of the “paper” record, and the “paper” records may be destroyed, upon a 

determination by the Chief Executive Officer that: 



3 

a) The records were electronically imaged or recorded on a medium that is a trusted

system and that does not permit additions, deletions, or changes to the original

document;

b) The device used to reproduce the record, paper, or document on the medium is

one which accurately and legibly reproduces the original thereof in all details and

that does not permit additions, deletions, or changes to the original document

images;

c) The imaged or reproduced records are used by CCCERA in the ordinary conduct

of its business in lieu of the “paper” records, and made as accessible for pubic

reference as the “paper” records were;

d) A true copy of archival quality of the reproduction medium shall be kept in a safe

and separate place for security purposes; and

e) No pages of any record shall be destroyed if any page cannot be reproduced with

full legibility.  Every unreproducible page shall be permanently preserved in a

manner that will afford easy reference.1

11. Non-records may be disposed of at any time.  However, if a non-record is retained as an

integral part of a file or in conjunction with Original Records, then it will be retained in

accordance with the appropriate retention schedule.

12. Electronic communications, including e-mail, are considered transitory in nature, and are

not customarily kept or retained by CCCERA as the primary means for preserving

information for future reference.  E-mail may be periodically or routinely purged from

the system without any necessary action by the sender or the recipient of the

communication. In addition, employees are encouraged to delete messages daily,

immediately after reading, replying, or taking other action concerning them.  Exception -

If the content of an e-mail message is necessary for, or convenient to, the conduct of

CCCERA business and was made for the purpose of preserving its informational content,

employees are required to store the e-mail in the relevant hard copy or electronic file, to

be kept in accordance with the Records Retention Schedule.

RESPONSIBILITIES 

Departments 

Employees in each of CCCERA’s departments are directly responsible for the 

management of that department’s records, documents, files, data, and other information 

pertaining to CCCERA’s official business.  To fulfill this responsibility, the managers of each 

department must: 

1 See e.g. Government Code sections 26205 and 26205.5. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman



4 

13.1. Ensure that each person within the department implements the Records Retention Policy. 

14.2. Conduct one or more Records Purge Days per year. 

15.3. Dispose of all expired records, as required by the Records Retention Schedule. 

16.4. Work with CCCERA General Counsel to periodically update the Records Retention 

Schedule. 

17.5. Prevent the disposal of records or information following notification by CCCERA 

General Counsel that disposal must be suspended for litigation or other reasons. 

Administrationve Services 

In addition to responsibilities set forth above, the Administrative ServicesHuman 

RResources/Administration Manager (or others as designated by the Chief Executive Officer) is 

responsible for the following: 

18.1. Assisting with the development, maintenance and periodic review of the records retention 

program. The program will consist of this Policy, the Records Retention Schedule and the 

records inventory. 

19.2. Coordinating the use of and offsite storage facilities for the storage and retrieval of 

records.  

20.3. Maintaining a master inventory of records stored in off-site locations. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.5", Numbered +
Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1.5" + Indent at:  1.75"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Num Continue

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.5", Numbered +
Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" + Indent at:  1.25"



5 

CCCERA General Counsel 

CCCERA General Counsel is responsible for the following: 

21.1. Assisting with the development, maintenance and periodic review of the Records 

Retention Schedule. 

22.2. Advising departments and employees, as appropriate, of actual or potential litigation, 

government investigations, or other circumstances that may affect records retention or 

disposal actions.  For example, pre-trial discovery proceedings may prohibit destruction 

of all relevant records - including non-records, or records that should have been destroyed 

previously in accordance with the Records Retention Schedule. 

23.3. Issuing Disposal Suspensions that formally suspend records disposal, specifying the types 

of records to which these suspensions relate, and removing these suspensions when 

appropriate.  A Disposal Suspension means, among other reasons, that the information 

contained in the records is or may be subject to production under a subpoena or document 

discovery order and that disposal under authority of the Records Retention Schedule is 

not authorized. 

4. Providing legal advice to all departments concerning all matters related to the legal

aspects of the Records Retention Policy and Schedule.

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.5", Numbered +
Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" + Indent at:  1.25"



6 

24. 

PROCEDURES 

A. On-Site Storage 

For the on-site storage time period specified in the Retention Schedule, records should be 

retained under the control of the Administrative ServicesHuman Resources/Administratoin 

Manager (or others as designated by the Chief Executive Officer). 

B. Off-Site Storage 

For records to be stored off-site according to the record retention policy, the Administrative 

ServicesHuman Resources/Administration Manager (or others as designated by the Chief 

Executive Officer) should prepare them for off-site storage. The records should be inventoried, 

boxed and clearly labeled, including a final disposal date or “retain indefinitely” designation.  

The Administrative ServicesHuman Resources/Administration Manager will be responsible for 

coordinating delivery to the off-site storage facility and will maintain a detailed and current 

inventory of all records stored off-site. 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"



7 

C. Retrieval from Off-Site Storage 

To request a record from offsite storage, submit a request form to the Administrative 

ServicesHuman Resources/Administration Manager (or designee).  The request form must 

include the corresponding box number. 

D. Destruction / Disposal of Off-Site Documents 

The Administrative ServicesHuman Resources/Administration Manager (or designee) will 

designate at least one day each year for the destruction and disposal of off-site records that have 

expired and will provide Management the appropriate Manager with a comprehensive list of 

documents scheduled to be destroyed.  Managers should review the list and provide notice to 

Administrative Servicesthe Human Resources/Administration Manager (or designee) the for any 

records that are ready for destruction and disposal and the records whose retention date should be 

extended or made permanent. For records with an extended destruction date tThe notice must 

include a justification for the change and a new “dispose of” date or permanent retention 

designation. 

E. Disposal of on-site Documents 

At least once per year, each department must dispose of expired on-site records. The department 

manager will coordinate the effort.  

VI. DEFINITIONS

Administrative Value - Records created to help accomplish the day-to-day functions of all 

offices, and that are needed only as long as they assist the agency organization in performing 

current or future work. 

Appraisal - The process of determining the need to retain or dispose of records. 

Convenience File - Extra copies of records, personal papers, or publications maintained for ease 

of access and reference. Also known as a personal file. 

Copy - A reproduction of the contents of an original document prepared simultaneously or 

separately.  

Correspondence - Letters, postcards, memoranda, notes, telecommunications, e-mails, and any 

other form of addressed, written communications sent or received. 

Current records - A record that is in force even though there is no activity or ongoing process 

directly related to it. Policies, procedures, standards, guidelines and organizational charts (the 

record copy or original with the background material) would be "current" until revised, 

superseded or rescinded. 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"



8 

Discovery – The pretrial disclosure of pertinent facts or documents by one or both parties to a 

civil or criminal action or proceeding. Nothing requested during discovery may be destroyed – 

even non-records and records that should have been destroyed earlier.  Discovery effectively 

freezes selected holdings until released by Counsel. 

Disposal - Physical movement of records for destruction or recycling, or for transfer to a storage 

facility. 

Disposition - The actions taken with regard to records following their appraisal. The term 

includes but is not synonymous with disposal. 

Document - Recorded information regardless of the medium or physical characteristics.  

Frequently used interchangeably with record. See also RECORDS. 

Electronic records - Those records in a form that only a computer can process and store.  

Databases and other data compilations that are used for multiple purposes are records.  Computer 

back-up tapes and other duplicate computer files are non-records. Electronic mail, voice mail and 

word processing files are non-records when destroyed or, for word-processing files, when they 

are superseded by more recent versions or when they are printed. The final printed outputs are 

records. When computer information is characterized as a record material, it must be retained 

according to CCCERA records retention schedule. 

Expired Records – On or off-site records whose retention period has passed. 

Fiscal Value - Fiscal records pertain to the financial transactions of the agency, such as budgets, 

ledgers, allotments, payrolls and vouchers. After some records have served a basic administrative 

function, they may still have sufficient fiscal value to justify additional retention. 

Historical Records – Records that document the history and development of an agency or 

contain data that can be useful for research. 

Historical Value – The determination by appraisal that historical records are worthy of 

permanent preservation. 

Legal Value - Records with legal value contain evidence of legally enforceable rights or 

obligations of the agency. Examples are records that provide the basis for action, such as agency 

decisions and legal opinions; fiscal documents representing agreements, such as leases, titles and 

contracts; and records of action in particular cases, such as claim papers and legal dockets. 

Non-Records - Material not usually included within the definition of records, such as unofficial 

copies of documents kept only for convenience or reference, working papers, appointment logs, 

stocks of publications, requests for printed material after the requests have been filled, 

transmittal letters and acknowledgments that do not contribute any information to the material 

transmitted, shorthand notes and dictating media that have been transcribed and miscellaneous 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"



9 

notices of agency affairs, meetings, holidays and the like.  Also, documents such as rough notes, 

calculations or drafts used in the preparation or analysis of other documents. 

Permanent Records – Records that are required in perpetuity, usually identified by statute or 

other written guidance. 

Public Records - Any information relating to the conduct of the public's business prepared, 

owned, used, or retained by any state or local agency regardless of physical form or 

characteristics. 

Records - All papers, maps, exhibits, magnetic or paper tapes, photographic films and prints, 

electronic documents and other documents produced, received, owned or used by CCCERA, 

regardless of physical form or characteristics. Supplies of publications and printed blank forms 

are not defined as records. 

Records Management – Record creation, storage and destruction. 

Records Retention Schedule – A document governing, on a continuing basis, the mandatory 

disposition of the records of an organization or agency. It lists all records produced or maintained 

by an agency organization and the actions taken with regard to those records. A retention 

schedule is an agency’s organization’s legal authority to receive, create, retain, and dispose of 

official public records. It assists the agency organization by documenting which records require 

office or temporary storage, have historic or research value, or should be destroyed because they 

no longer have administrative, fiscal, or legal value. 

Retention Period – The length of time a record must be retained to fulfill its administrative, 

fiscal and/or legal function. 

VII. APPENDIXCES

Exhibit A – Retention Schedule 

VIII. HISTORY

Adopted: May 6, 2009 

Amended: ____, 2020. 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold,
Underline

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman



1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520     Phone: (925) 521-3960      Fax: (925) 521-3969     cccera.org 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: February 12, 2020 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Karen Levy, General Counsel  

Subject: Consider and take possible action to amend Policy on Internal Revenue Compliance. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 
1. The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) generally requires that when deferred members
reach a certain age prescribed by law, they begin receiving required minimum distributions 
from the plan.  The federal Setting Every Community Up for Retirement Enhancement Act 
(SECURE Act) was enacted on December 20, 2019.  The SECURE Act changed the beginning age 
at which minimum distributions are required to begin effective in 2020.  Instead of age 70 ½, 
the Act specifies the age of 72.  Specifically, for members who turn 70 ½ on or after January 1, 
2020, the CCCERA plan is now required to begin distributions by the later of: 

a. April 1 following the calendar year in which the member attains age 72 for
distributions required to be made on or after January 1, 2020; or

b. April 1 of the year following the calendar year in which the member terminates.

(Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a)(9)(C)(i)(I).) 

2. Additionally, the IRS allows the member to rollover the distribution to an eligible
retirement plan.  The IRS requires a qualified plan such as CCCERA to permit direct rollovers to 
SIMPLE IRAs as it must for any other IRA, provided the SIMPLE IRA must have been established 
for at least two years.   

Enclosed, for the Board’s consideration, is an amended Policy on Internal Revenue Compliance 
that reflects these requirements.  (See Attachment A.)  A redline reflecting all suggested 
changes is enclosed as Attachment B.    

Recommendation 
Consider and take possible action to amend CCCERA’s Policy on Internal Revenue Compliance. 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/12/20Agenda Item#13



Attachment 

A 



CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

POLICY ON INTERNAL REVENUE CODE COMPLIANCE 

1. Purpose of this Policy

A. CCCERA is established as a qualified defined benefit plan under the County

Employees Retirement Law of 1937, California Government Code sections 31450, et 

seq., as amended from time to time ("CERL"), sections 401(a) and 414(d) of the 

Internal Revenue Code, such other provisions of the Internal Revenue Code as 

applicable, and applicable Treasury regulations and other guidance. 

B. The Retirement Board is authorized by law to adopt regulations and policies which are 

appropriate or necessary to maintain the qualified status of the plan. 

2. Definitions

A. All references to the Internal Revenue Code or IRC mean the Internal Revenue Code

of 1986, as amended. 

B. The plan year is the calendar year. 

3. Reversions of Employer Contributions (California Constitution, Article 16, Section

17(a); CERL Sections 31588.2 and 31595; IRC Section 401(a)(2))

The trust fund must not revert, and no contributions shall be permitted to be returned, to the

employers prior to the satisfaction of all liabilities with respect to their employees and their

beneficiaries under the trust.

4. Vesting (IRC Sections 401(a)(7); California Constitution, Article 16, Section 17(a);

CERL Sections 31451, 31485.19, and 31485.22)

A. A member shall be 100% vested in his or her service retirement benefit upon attaining

eligibility for a service retirement benefit. 

B. A plan member shall be 100% vested in his or her accumulated contributions at all 

times. 

C. In the event of a full or partial termination of, or a complete discontinuance of employer 

contributions to, the Plan, the accrued benefits of the affected members under the Plan 

shall be 100% vested and nonforfeitable to the extent funded and to the extent required 

by federal law. 

5. Required Minimum Distributions (IRC Section 401(a)(9); CERL Sections 31485.14

and 31706)

CCCERA will pay all benefits in accordance with a good faith interpretation of the

requirements of IRC Section 401(a)(9) and the regulations in effect under that section, as



2 

applicable to a governmental plan within the meaning of IRC Section 414(d).  CCCERA is 

subject to the following provisions: 

A. For members attaining age 70 ½ on or after January 1, 2020, distribution of a member’s 

benefit must begin by the required beginning date, which is the later of the April 1 

following the calendar year in which the member attains age 72 or April 1 of the year 

following the calendar year in which the member terminates.  (Setting Every 

Community Up for Retirement Enhancement Act (SECURE Act), Section 114.).  

For members attaining the age 70 ½ on or prior to December 31, 2019, distribution of 

a member's benefit must begin by the required beginning date, which is the later of the 

April 1 following the calendar year in which the member attains age 70½ or April 1 of 

the year following the calendar year in which the member terminates.   

B. The member's entire interest must be distributed over the member’s life or the lives of 

the member and a designated beneficiary, or over a period not extending beyond the 

life expectancy of the member or of the member and a designated beneficiary. 

C. If a member dies after the required distribution of benefits has begun, the remaining 

portion of the member's interest must be distributed at least as rapidly as under the 

method of distribution before the member's death.  That is, a permissible joint and 

survivor annuity (one that satisfies E below) may be paid over the life or life expectancy 

of the beneficiary. 

D. If a member dies before required distribution of the member's benefits has begun, the 

member's entire interest must be either: 

(i) distributed (in accordance with federal regulations) over the life or life 

expectancy of the designated beneficiary, with the distributions beginning no later than 

December 31 of the calendar year following the calendar year of the member's death, 

or  

(ii) distributed by December 31 of the calendar year containing the fifth anniversary 

of the participant's death. 

E. The amount of an annuity paid to a member's beneficiary may not exceed the maximum 

determined under the incidental death benefit requirement of IRC Section 

401(a)(9)(G), and the minimum distribution incidental benefit rule under Treasury 

Regulation Section 1.401(a)(9)-6, Q&A-2. 

F. The death and disability benefits provided by CCCERA are limited by the incidental 

benefit rule set forth in IRC Section 401(a)(9)(G) and Treasury Regulation 

Section 1.401-1(b)(1)(i) or any successor regulation thereto.  As a result, the total death 

or disability benefits payable may not exceed 25% of the cost for all of the members' 

benefits received from the retirement system. 

G. Notwithstanding the other provisions of this Policy or the provisions of the Treasury 

Regulations, benefit options in place in 2002 may continue so long as the option 



3 

 

 

satisfies IRC Section 401(a)(9) based on a reasonable and good faith interpretation of 

that section. 

6. Limitation on Compensation (IRC Section 401(a)(17); CERL Section 31671;BOR 

Regulations VI) 

A. Effective with respect to plan years beginning on and after July 1, 2002, the annual 

compensation of a plan member shall not exceed the applicable limit established by 

IRC Section 401(a)(17) as of the first day of the limitation year, as adjusted for cost of 

living increases in accordance with IRC Section 401(a)(17)(B)).  Annual compensation 

means compensation during the plan year or such other consecutive 12-month period 

over which compensation is otherwise determined under the plan (the determination 

period).  If the determination period consists of fewer than 12 months, the annual 

compensation limit is an amount equal to the otherwise applicable annual compensation 

limit multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of months in the 

short determination period, and the denominator of which is 12.  If the compensation 

for any prior determination period is taken into account in determining a plan member's 

contributions or benefits for the current plan year, the compensation for such prior 

determination period is subject to the applicable annual compensation limit in effect 

for that prior period. 

B. "Grandfather" Clause.  As used in this section, the term "eligible member" means a 

person who first became a member of CCCERA prior to the plan year beginning after 

December 31, 1995 (January 1, 1996).  Pursuant to section 13212(d)(3)(A) of OBRA 

‘93, and the regulations issued under that section, "eligible members" are not subject 

to the limits of IRC Section 401(a)(17).  The limits referenced in subsection (A) above 

applies only to years beginning after December 31, 1995, and only to individuals who 

first become plan members in plan years beginning on and after January 1, 1996.   

7. Eligible Rollover Distributions (IRC Section 401(a)(31); CERL Sections 31485.15 and 

31564) 

For purposes of compliance with IRC Section 401(a)(31), this section applies 

notwithstanding any contrary provision or retirement law that would otherwise limit a 

distributee's election to make a rollover.  A distributee may elect, at the time and in the 

manner prescribed by the Board, to have any portion of an eligible rollover distribution paid 

directly to an eligible retirement plan specified by the distributee in a direct rollover. 

A. "Eligible rollover distribution" means any distribution of all or any portion of the 

balance to the credit of the distributee, except that an eligible rollover distribution does 

not include: any distribution that is one of a series of substantially equal periodic 

payments (not less frequently than annually) made for the life (or the life expectancy) 

of the distributee or the joint lives (or joint life expectancies) of the distributee and the 

distributee's designated beneficiary, or for a specified period of ten years or more; any 

distribution to the extent such distribution is required under IRC Section 401(a)(9); and 

the portion of any distribution that is not includible in gross income.  Effective January 

1, 2002, a portion of a distribution will not fail to be an eligible rollover distribution 



4 

 

 

merely because the portion consists of after-tax employee contributions that are not 

includible in gross income. However, such portion may be transferred only (i) to an 

individual retirement account or annuity described in IRC Section 408(a) or (b) or to a 

qualified defined contribution plan described in IRC Section 401(a), that agrees to 

separately account for amounts so transferred (and earnings thereon), including 

separately accounting for the portion of the distribution that is includible in gross 

income and the portion of the distribution that is not so includible; (ii) on or after 

January 1, 2007, to a qualified defined benefit plan described in IRC Section 401(a) or 

to an annuity contract described in IRC Section 403(b), that agrees to separately 

account for amounts so transferred (and earnings thereon), including separately 

accounting for the portion of the distribution that is includible in gross income and the 

portion of the distribution that is not so includible; or (iii) on or after January 1, 2008, 

to a Roth IRA described in IRC Section 408A.  Effective January 1, 2002, the definition 

of eligible rollover distribution also includes a distribution to a surviving spouse, or to 

a spouse or former spouse who is an alternate payee under a qualified domestic 

relations order, as defined in IRC Section 414(p). 

B. "Eligible retirement plan" means any of the following that accepts the distributee's 

eligible rollover distribution:   

(i) an individual retirement account ("IRA") described in IRC Section 408(a), 

(ii) an individual retirement annuity ("IRA") described in IRC Section 408(b), 

(iii) an annuity plan ("annuity contract") described in IRC Section 403(a), 

(iv) a qualified trust (such as CCCERA) described in IRC Section 401(a), 

(v) effective January 1, 2002, an annuity contract ("403(b) plan") described in IRC 

Section 403(b), 

(vi) effective January 1, 2002, a plan eligible under IRC Section 457(b) that is 

maintained by a state, political subdivision of a state, or any agency or instrumentality 

of a state or a political subdivision of a state that agrees to separately account for 

amounts transferred into that plan from CCCERA, or 

(vii) effective January 1, 2008, a Roth IRA described in IRC Section 408A.   

(viii) effective December 19, 2015, a SIMPLE IRA that meets the 2-year requirements 

in IRC Section 408(p) 

C. "Distributee" means an active member or former active member.  It also includes the 

member's or former member's surviving spouse and the member's or former member's 

spouse or former spouse who is the alternate payee under a qualified domestic relations 

order, as defined in IRC Section 414(p).  Effective January 1, 2007, a distributee further 

includes a nonspouse beneficiary who is a designated beneficiary as defined by IRC 

Section 401(a)(9)(E).  However, a nonspouse beneficiary may rollover the distribution 



5 

 

 

only to an individual retirement account or individual retirement annuity established 

for the purpose of receiving the distribution, and the account or annuity will be treated 

as an "inherited" individual retirement account or annuity. 

D. "Direct rollover" means a payment by the plan to the eligible retirement plan specified 

by the distributee. 

8. HEART Act (IRC Section 401(a)(37); CERL Section 31485.17) 

A. Effective with respect to deaths occurring on or after January 1, 2007, while a member 

is performing qualified military service (as defined in chapter 43 of title 38, United 

States Code), to the extent required by IRC Section 401(a)(37), survivors of a member 

in a State or local retirement or pension system, are entitled to any additional benefits 

that the system would provide if the member had resumed employment and then died, 

such as accelerated vesting or survivor benefits that are contingent on the member's 

death while employed.  In any event, a deceased member's period of qualified military 

service must be counted for vesting purposes. 

B. Effective with respect to deaths or disabilities [or both] occurring on or after January 1, 

2007, while a member is performing qualified military service (as defined in chapter 

43 of title 38, United States Code), to the extent permitted by IRC Section 414(u)(8), 

for benefit accrual purposes, and in the case of death, for vesting purposes, the member 

will be treated as having returned to employment on the day before the death or 

disability and then terminated on the date of death or disability.  This provision shall 

be applied to all similarly situated individuals in a reasonably equivalent manner.   

C.  Beginning January 1, 2009, to the extent required by IRC Sections 3401(h) and 

414(u)(2), an individual receiving differential wage payments (while the individual is 

performing qualified military service, as defined in chapter 43 of title 38, United States 

Code) from an employer shall be treated as employed by that employer and the 

differential wage payment shall be treated as compensation for purposes of applying 

the limits on annual additions under IRC Section 415(c). This provision shall be applied 

to all similarly situated individuals in a reasonably equivalent manner. 

9. Reemployed Veteran (IRC Section 414(u); CERL Sections 31649, 31649.1 and 

31649.5) 

Effective December 12, 1994, notwithstanding any other provision of CERL, the Board 

Regulations or this Policy, contributions, benefits and service credit with respect to qualified 

military service are governed by IRC Section 414(u) and the Uniformed Services 

Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994, including requiring the employer to 

make, on behalf of returning service members, any plan contributions that the employer 

would have made if the service member had not been absent as a result of military service, 

the reemployed service member shall also be entitled to accrued benefits that are contingent 

on the making of, or derived from, employee contributions or elective deferrals that were 

missed during the qualified employee's military service if such missed contributions are paid 



6 

 

 

to the fund, and the reemployed service member's period of qualified military service shall 

be included for purposes of vesting.   

10. Qualified Domestic Relations Orders (IRC Section 414(p); CERL Article 8.4) 

If benefits are payable under CERL Article 8.4 pursuant to a qualified domestic relations 

order that meets the requirements of a domestic relations order as defined in IRC Section 

414(p), then the applicable federal income tax provisions of IRC Section 414(p) will apply. 

11. Adjustment of Employer Contributions for Replacement Benefit Program (IRC 

Section 415(m); CERL Sections 31899.4 and 31899.5) 

The adjustment in employer contributions required by CERL Section 31899.4 to the extent 

the employer pays benefits through the replacement benefit program shall be accomplished 

in the following manner: 

 

A. For an employer contributing on a monthly basis, the contribution amount the employer 

is required to pay to CCCERA in any month shall be reduced by the amount the 

employer pays from the replacement benefit program in that month; and 

B. For an employer contributing on an annual basis, any make-up payment due from the 

employer at the end of the year or, if insufficient, the amount of contributions due from 

the employer for the next year, shall be reduced by the amount the employer paid from 

the replacement benefit program during that year. 

Under no circumstances shall any amounts be transferred from CCCERA to the replacement 

benefit program. 

12. Prohibited Transactions (IRC Section 503(b)) 

Effective as of July 1, 1989, the Board may not engage in a transaction prohibited by IRC 

Section 503(b).  For example, prohibited transactions include the following transactions with 

certain related parties such as a plan sponsor: a loan without adequate interest or security, 

the payment of excessive compensation, the purchase of securities or property for more than 

adequate consideration, or the sale of securities or property for less than adequate 

consideration. 

13. Distribution General Requirements (IRC 401(a)(36); CERL Section 31485.20; IRC 

Section 402(d)(4)(A)(iii); CERL Section 31485.21) 

Effective January 1, 2015, members may only receive distributions from the plan in 

compliance with permitted distributions (e.g., the earlier of death, disability, separation from 

service, attainment of normal retirement age) rules under (IRC Section 401(a) and Treasury 

Regulation Section 1.401(b)(1)(i)).   



7 

 

 

14. Review  

This policy shall be reviewed by the Board at least every three (3) years and may be amended 

at any time.  

15. History  

This policy was adopted on:  December 8, 2010 

Amended: July 11, 2018, __________, 2020  



Attachment 

B 



CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

POLICY ON INTERNAL REVENUE CODE COMPLIANCE 

1. Purpose of this Policy

A. CCCERA is established as a qualified defined benefit plan under the County

Employees Retirement Law of 1937, California Government Code sections 31450, et 

seq., as amended from time to time ("CERL"), sections 401(a) and 414(d) of the 

Internal Revenue Code, such other provisions of the Internal Revenue Code as 

applicable, and applicable Treasury regulations and other guidance. 

B. The Retirement Board is authorized by law to adopt regulations and policies which are 

appropriate or necessary to maintain the qualified status of the plan. 

2. Definitions

A. All references to the Internal Revenue Code or IRC mean the Internal Revenue Code

of 1986, as amended. 

B. The plan year is the calendar year. 

3. Reversions of Employer Contributions (California Constitution, Article 16, Section

17(a); CERL Sections 31588.2 and 31595; IRC Section 401(a)(2))

The trust fund must not revert, and no contributions shall be permitted to be returned, to the

employers prior to the satisfaction of all liabilities with respect to their employees and their

beneficiaries under the trust.

4. Vesting (IRC Sections 401(a)(7); California Constitution, Article 16, Section 17(a);

CERL Sections 31451, 31485.19, and 31485.22)

A. A member shall be 100% vested in his or her service retirement benefit upon attaining

eligibility for a service retirement benefit. 

B. A plan member shall be 100% vested in his or her accumulated contributions at all 

times. 

C. In the event of a full or partial termination of, or a complete discontinuance of employer 

contributions to, the Plan, the accrued benefits of the affected members under the Plan 

shall be 100% vested and nonforfeitable to the extent funded and to the extent required 

by federal law. 



2 

5. Required Minimum Distributions (IRC Section 401(a)(9); CERL Sections 31485.14

and 31706)

CCCERA will pay all benefits in accordance with a good faith interpretation of the

requirements of IRC Section 401(a)(9) and the regulations in effect under that section, as

applicable to a governmental plan within the meaning of IRC Section 414(d).  CCCERA is

subject to the following provisions:

A. For members attaining age 70 ½ on or after January 1, 2020, distribution of a member’s

benefit must begin by the required beginning date, which is the later of the April 1 

following the calendar year in which the member attains age 72 or April 1 of the year 

following the calendar year in which the member terminates.  (Setting Every 

Community Up for Retirement Enhancement Act (SECURE Act), Section 114.).  

For members attaining the age 70 ½ on or prior to December 31, 2019, Ddistribution 

of a member's benefit must begin by the required beginning date, which is the later of 

the April 1 following the calendar year in which the member attains age 70½ or April 

1 of the year following the calendar year in which the member terminates.   

B. The member's entire interest must be distributed over the member’s life or the lives of 

the member and a designated beneficiary, or over a period not extending beyond the 

life expectancy of the member or of the member and a designated beneficiary. 

C. If a member dies after the required distribution of benefits has begun, the remaining 

portion of the member's interest must be distributed at least as rapidly as under the 

method of distribution before the member's death.  That is, a permissible joint and 

survivor annuity (one that satisfies E below) may be paid over the life or life expectancy 

of the beneficiary. 

D. If a member dies before required distribution of the member's benefits has begun, the 

member's entire interest must be either: 

(i) distributed (in accordance with federal regulations) over the life or life 

expectancy of the designated beneficiary, with the distributions beginning no later than 

December 31 of the calendar year following the calendar year of the member's death, 

or  

(ii) distributed by December 31 of the calendar year containing the fifth anniversary 

of the participant's death. 

E. The amount of an annuity paid to a member's beneficiary may not exceed the maximum 

determined under the incidental death benefit requirement of IRC Section 

401(a)(9)(G), and the minimum distribution incidental benefit rule under Treasury 

Regulation Section 1.401(a)(9)-6, Q&A-2. 

F. The death and disability benefits provided by CCCERA are limited by the incidental 

benefit rule set forth in IRC Section 401(a)(9)(G) and Treasury Regulation 

Section 1.401-1(b)(1)(i) or any successor regulation thereto.  As a result, the total death 



3 

 

 

or disability benefits payable may not exceed 25% of the cost for all of the members' 

benefits received from the retirement system. 

G. Notwithstanding the other provisions of this Policy or the provisions of the Treasury 

Regulations, benefit options in place in 2002 may continue so long as the option 

satisfies IRC Section 401(a)(9) based on a reasonable and good faith interpretation of 

that section. 

6. Limitation on Compensation (IRC Section 401(a)(17); CERL Section 31671;BOR 

Regulations VI) 

A. Effective with respect to plan years beginning on and after July 1, 2002, the annual 

compensation of a plan member shall not exceed the applicable limit established by 

IRC Section 401(a)(17) as of the first day of the limitation year, as adjusted for cost of 

living increases in accordance with IRC Section 401(a)(17)(B)).  Annual compensation 

means compensation during the plan year or such other consecutive 12-month period 

over which compensation is otherwise determined under the plan (the determination 

period).  If the determination period consists of fewer than 12 months, the annual 

compensation limit is an amount equal to the otherwise applicable annual compensation 

limit multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of months in the 

short determination period, and the denominator of which is 12.  If the compensation 

for any prior determination period is taken into account in determining a plan member's 

contributions or benefits for the current plan year, the compensation for such prior 

determination period is subject to the applicable annual compensation limit in effect 

for that prior period. 

B. "Grandfather" Clause.  As used in this section, the term "eligible member" means a 

person who first became a member of CCCERA prior to the plan year beginning after 

December 31, 1995 (January 1, 1996).  Pursuant to section 13212(d)(3)(A) of OBRA 

‘93, and the regulations issued under that section, "eligible members" are not subject 

to the limits of IRC Section 401(a)(17).  The limits referenced in subsection (A) above 

applies only to years beginning after December 31, 1995, and only to individuals who 

first become plan members in plan years beginning on and after January 1, 1996.   

7. Eligible Rollover Distributions (IRC Section 401(a)(31); CERL Sections 31485.15 and 

31564) 

For purposes of compliance with IRC Section 401(a)(31), this section applies 

notwithstanding any contrary provision or retirement law that would otherwise limit a 

distributee's election to make a rollover.  A distributee may elect, at the time and in the 

manner prescribed by the Board, to have any portion of an eligible rollover distribution paid 

directly to an eligible retirement plan specified by the distributee in a direct rollover. 

A. "Eligible rollover distribution" means any distribution of all or any portion of the 

balance to the credit of the distributee, except that an eligible rollover distribution does 

not include: any distribution that is one of a series of substantially equal periodic 

payments (not less frequently than annually) made for the life (or the life expectancy) 



4 

 

 

of the distributee or the joint lives (or joint life expectancies) of the distributee and the 

distributee's designated beneficiary, or for a specified period of ten years or more; any 

distribution to the extent such distribution is required under IRC Section 401(a)(9); and 

the portion of any distribution that is not includible in gross income.  Effective January 

1, 2002, a portion of a distribution will not fail to be an eligible rollover distribution 

merely because the portion consists of after-tax employee contributions that are not 

includible in gross income. However, such portion may be transferred only (i) to an 

individual retirement account or annuity described in IRC Section 408(a) or (b) or to a 

qualified defined contribution plan described in IRC Section 401(a), that agrees to 

separately account for amounts so transferred (and earnings thereon), including 

separately accounting for the portion of the distribution that is includible in gross 

income and the portion of the distribution that is not so includible; (ii) on or after 

January 1, 2007, to a qualified defined benefit plan described in IRC Section 401(a) or 

to an annuity contract described in IRC Section 403(b), that agrees to separately 

account for amounts so transferred (and earnings thereon), including separately 

accounting for the portion of the distribution that is includible in gross income and the 

portion of the distribution that is not so includible; or (iii) on or after January 1, 2008, 

to a Roth IRA described in IRC Section 408A.  Effective January 1, 2002, the definition 

of eligible rollover distribution also includes a distribution to a surviving spouse, or to 

a spouse or former spouse who is an alternate payee under a qualified domestic 

relations order, as defined in IRC Section 414(p). 

B. "Eligible retirement plan" means any of the following that accepts the distributee's 

eligible rollover distribution:   

(i) an individual retirement account ("IRA") described in IRC Section 408(a), 

(ii) an individual retirement annuity ("IRA") described in IRC Section 408(b), 

(iii) an annuity plan ("annuity contract") described in IRC Section 403(a), 

(iv) a qualified trust (such as CCCERA) described in IRC Section 401(a), 

(v) effective January 1, 2002, an annuity contract ("403(b) plan") described in IRC 

Section 403(b), 

(vi) effective January 1, 2002, a plan eligible under IRC Section 457(b) that is 

maintained by a state, political subdivision of a state, or any agency or instrumentality 

of a state or a political subdivision of a state that agrees to separately account for 

amounts transferred into that plan from CCCERA, or 

(vii) effective January 1, 2008, a Roth IRA described in IRC Section 408A.   

(vii)(viii) effective December 19, 2015, a SIMPLE IRA that meets the 2-year 

requirements in IRC Section 408(p) 



5 

 

 

C. "Distributee" means an active member or former active member.  It also includes the 

member's or former member's surviving spouse and the member's or former member's 

spouse or former spouse who is the alternate payee under a qualified domestic relations 

order, as defined in IRC Section 414(p).  Effective January 1, 2007, a distributee further 

includes a nonspouse beneficiary who is a designated beneficiary as defined by IRC 

Section 401(a)(9)(E).  However, a nonspouse beneficiary may rollover the distribution 

only to an individual retirement account or individual retirement annuity established 

for the purpose of receiving the distribution, and the account or annuity will be treated 

as an "inherited" individual retirement account or annuity. 

D. "Direct rollover" means a payment by the plan to the eligible retirement plan specified 

by the distributee. 

8. HEART Act (IRC Section 401(a)(37); CERL Section 31485.17) 

A. Effective with respect to deaths occurring on or after January 1, 2007, while a member 

is performing qualified military service (as defined in chapter 43 of title 38, United 

States Code), to the extent required by IRC Section 401(a)(37), survivors of a member 

in a State or local retirement or pension system, are entitled to any additional benefits 

that the system would provide if the member had resumed employment and then died, 

such as accelerated vesting or survivor benefits that are contingent on the member's 

death while employed.  In any event, a deceased member's period of qualified military 

service must be counted for vesting purposes. 

B. Effective with respect to deaths or disabilities [or both] occurring on or after January 1, 

2007, while a member is performing qualified military service (as defined in chapter 

43 of title 38, United States Code), to the extent permitted by IRC Section 414(u)(8), 

for benefit accrual purposes, and in the case of death, for vesting purposes, the member 

will be treated as having returned to employment on the day before the death or 

disability and then terminated on the date of death or disability.  This provision shall 

be applied to all similarly situated individuals in a reasonably equivalent manner.   

C.  Beginning January 1, 2009, to the extent required by IRC Sections 3401(h) and 

414(u)(2), an individual receiving differential wage payments (while the individual is 

performing qualified military service, as defined in chapter 43 of title 38, United States 

Code) from an employer shall be treated as employed by that employer and the 

differential wage payment shall be treated as compensation for purposes of applying 

the limits on annual additions under IRC Section 415(c). This provision shall be applied 

to all similarly situated individuals in a reasonably equivalent manner. 

9. Reemployed Veteran (IRC Section 414(u); CERL Sections 31649, 31649.1 and 

31649.5) 

Effective December 12, 1994, notwithstanding any other provision of CERL, the Board 

Regulations or this Policy, contributions, benefits and service credit with respect to qualified 

military service are governed by IRC Section 414(u) and the Uniformed Services 

Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994, including requiring the employer to 



6 

 

 

make, on behalf of returning service members, any plan contributions that the employer 

would have made if the service member had not been absent as a result of military service, 

the reemployed service member shall also be entitled to accrued benefits that are contingent 

on the making of, or derived from, employee contributions or elective deferrals that were 

missed during the qualified employee's military service if such missed contributions are paid 

to the fund, and the reemployed service member's period of qualified military service shall 

be included for purposes of vesting.   

10. Qualified Domestic Relations Orders (IRC Section 414(p); CERL Article 8.4) 

If benefits are payable under CERL Article 8.4 pursuant to a qualified domestic relations 

order that meets the requirements of a domestic relations order as defined in IRC Section 

414(p), then the applicable federal income tax provisions of IRC Section 414(p) will apply. 

11. Adjustment of Employer Contributions for Replacement Benefit Program (IRC 

Section 415(m); CERL Sections 31899.4 and 31899.5) 

The adjustment in employer contributions required by CERL Section 31899.4 to the extent 

the employer pays benefits through the replacement benefit program shall be accomplished 

in the following manner: 

 

A. For an employer contributing on a monthly basis, the contribution amount the employer 

is required to pay to CCCERA in any month shall be reduced by the amount the 

employer pays from the replacement benefit program in that month; and 

B. For an employer contributing on an annual basis, any make-up payment due from the 

employer at the end of the year or, if insufficient, the amount of contributions due from 

the employer for the next year, shall be reduced by the amount the employer paid from 

the replacement benefit program during that year. 

Under no circumstances shall any amounts be transferred from CCCERA to the replacement 

benefit program. 

12. Prohibited Transactions (IRC Section 503(b)) 

Effective as of July 1, 1989, the Board may not engage in a transaction prohibited by IRC 

Section 503(b).  For example, prohibited transactions include the following transactions with 

certain related parties such as a plan sponsor: a loan without adequate interest or security, 

the payment of excessive compensation, the purchase of securities or property for more than 

adequate consideration, or the sale of securities or property for less than adequate 

consideration. 

13. Distribution General Requirements (IRC 401(a)(36); CERL Section 31485.20; IRC 

Section 402(d)(4)(A)(iii); CERL Section 31485.21) 

Effective January 1, 2015, members may only receive distributions from the plan in 

compliance with permitted distributions (e.g., the earlier of death, disability, separation from 



7 

 

 

service, attainment of normal retirement age) rules under (IRC Section 401(a) and Treasury 

Regulation Section 1.401(b)(1)(i)).   

14. Review  

This policy shall be reviewed by the Board at least every three (3) years and may be amended 

at any time.  

15. History  

This policy was adopted on:  December 8, 2010 

Amended: July 11, 2018, __________, 2020  



sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/12/20Agenda Item#14a.



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/12/20Agenda Item#14b.


	agenda 02.12.2020
	Item 4
	Item 5
	Item 9
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14



